
Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Addendum to 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, June 24, 2014 – 7:00 pm 
City Hall, City Commission Chambers 

1376 E. Ninth St. 
 

Susie Galea ...............................................................Mayor, At-Large 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

Addendum to Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Recess into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 
 

  Threatened or Pending Litigation (URS) 
 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION          
Take any action as a result from Executive Session. 
 
A-1. Consider, and act upon, a Breach of Contract with URS related to the Airport Master Plan. 

(Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 
 

 
 

 
 



Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 24, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
1376 E. Ninth St. 

 
Susie Galea ...............................................................................Mayor 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation. The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL          
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE         
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA            
 

PUBLIC COMMENT            
Residents must sign up with the City Clerk to address the City Commission. Comments are limited to 3 Minutes, and there will 
be a maximum of 21 Minutes allowed for Public Comment. 
 

MISSION STATEMENT as Adopted by the City Commission on March 24, 1995. 
The City of Alamogordo is a Municipal Corporation that exists solely for the purpose of providing the best possible 
services to our customers, the citizens of Alamogordo. We are committed to providing these services with honesty, 
integrity, compassion, fairness, and a commitment to excellence.  

We are committed to the long-term financial stability and responsible growth of the City and all decisions will be driven by 
our commitment to provide the best services possible in a financially sound and responsible manner given the economic 
realities facing the City.    



June 24, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  (Roll Call Vote Required for Items No. 4, 5, 6, & 7)      
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission and will be enacted by one 
motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 
1. Approve Minutes of the May 5, 6, 7 & 12, 2014 Special Budget Workshop Minutes and the June 10, 

2014 Regular Meeting of the Alamogordo City Commission. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
2. Approve statement related to the Executive Session of June 10, 2014. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
3. Approve the Lodger’s Tax Expenditures for Tourism & Travel. (Jan Wafful, CS Admin. Assistant) 
 
4. Approve Resolution No. 2014-28 requesting written approval from the Local Government Division 

of the Department of Finance & Administration, State of New Mexico for the revised budget figures 
computed as of June 24th, 2014. [Roll call vote required]  (Kathy Gilsdorf, Budget Analyst) 

 
5. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1469  amending the zoning map, changing the 

classification of a certain area consisting of Alamo Blocks Block 84 Lot 12, the South half of Lot 
13, and Lot 14 (commonly known as 1121 and 1115 North Florida Avenue) from their present 
designation and zoning district of R-4, Multiple Family Dwelling District to C-3, Business District. 
(Case # Z-2014-0001(A)) [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
6. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1470  amending the zoning map, changing the 

classification of a certain area consisting of Quail Hollow Subdivision Lots 7-11, and Quail Hollow 
2 Subdivision Replat A Lots 2A-8A (commonly known as 1150, 1200, 1210, 1220, 1230, 1240, 1250, 
1300, 1310, 1320, 1330, and 1340 San Carlos Street) from their present designation and zoning 
district of R-1, Single Family Dwelling District to R-2, Townhouse Dwelling District.  (Case # Z-
2014-0002(A)) [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
7. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1471 modifying the composition of the Airport 

Advisory Board.  [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
8. Approve the award of RFP No. 2014-001 Financial Services for the City of Alamogordo to the 

overall highest rated proposal, RBC Capital Markets.  (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 
 
9. Approve the award of RFP 2013-006 Fixed Network Mesh Automated Meter Reading (AMR) System 

to Zenner USA.  (Armando Ortega, Customer Service Manager) 
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA         
 
10. Approve an agreement with Western Bakery Corporation to close-out economic development 

project.  (Stephen Thies, City Attorney)  WITHDRAWN 
     
NEW BUSINESS             
 
11. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on the Transportation Plan. (Jason Thomas, City 

Engineer) 
 
12. Appointments to Boards & Committees.  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  (Continued if needed)        
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT           
 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION      
 
 



June 24, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3
 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Recess into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 

 
 Collective Bargaining Negotiations (APSOA & AFSCME) 
 A-1. Threatened or Pending Litigation (URS) 

 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION          
Take any action as a result from Executive Session. 
 
A-1. Consider, and act upon, a Breach of Contract with URS related to the Airport Master Plan. 

(Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 

 
ADJOURNMENT             





CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M., COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
JUNE 10, 2014 

 
SUSIE GALEA, MAYOR   ROBERT RENTSCHLER, MAYOR PRO-TEM 
JASON BALDWIN, COMMISSIONER DR. GEORGE STRAFACE, COMMISSIONER 
NADIA SIKES, COMMISSIONER  JIM STAHLE, CITY MANAGER 
JENNY TURNBULL, COMMISSIONER STEPHEN THIES, CITY ATTORNEY 
AL HERNANDEZ, COMMISSIONER RENEE CANTIN, CITY CLERK 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Galea called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Roll Call was taken by the City Clerk.  
Commissioner Sikes was absent. Clerk Cantin announced there was a quorum present.  
Invocation was given by Reverend Dwight Harp and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Commissioner Baldwin. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve adding an Executive Session for Collective 
Bargaining Negotiations (APSOA & AFSCME).  Commissioner Hernandez seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve adding the addendum to the agenda. 
Commissioner Straface seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve the amended agenda.  Commissioner 
Hernandez seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
 1. Presentation regarding the efforts to create a civic brand for Alamogordo. (Cam 

Wilde, Presenter) 
 
Mr. Mike Espiritu, President & CEO, Chamber of Commerce addressed the commission.  He said 
that last year Laurie Anderson from OCEDC attended a meeting and in later discussions we 
agreed to pursue possible branding/re-branding of our community.  In September, the OCEDC and 
Chamber had their first of a series of meetings for community branding with a focus group of 
several volunteers from the community.  We identified the importance of branding, the potential 
impact, identified our community strengths and assets with the goal to create a consistent 
message that could be viewed by others from different perspectives, business recruitment, 
increased tourism, civic pride and ownership of our city.   This group met monthly and tossed 
around many ideas as well as conducting surveys in the community.  A strong city brand can 
definitely shift the perception of a place and represent who we are.   When people think of Roswell 
they think of aliens.  When you say Alamogordo you have to ask “What’s in Alamogordo?”  He said 
we have several key players with us tonight from the focus group and he introduced Laurie 
Anderson.   
 
Laurie Anderson from OCEDC continued with the presentation saying the whole idea of branding 
was to strategically place us in a position to import more dollars into our community than to export.  
Hundreds of communities are working to diversify their economies from core industries to new 
industry.  Community branding is a team sport and should be embraced by everyone as everyone 
gains to benefit.  Competition has never been more fierce.  What will peak an investors interest the 
first time they hear about us, what sets us apart from everyone else, why should they invest in our 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 2 OF 15     
    
community and how can we put more skin into the game.  What do we have to do in order to win 
when companies are looking to relocate.  We looked at a community with a population of a little 
over 16,000, a former lumber town.  Their challenge was trying to attract new business when they 
are located 60 minutes east of Minneapolis/St. Paul, 30 minutes west of Chippewa Falls.  They 
identified their target audience and their values and priorities, and identified how they were an 
extension of those values.  They came up with ‘Welcome to Menomonie, Wisconsin: Right in the 
Middle of Everywhere.”  This is an excellent example of a small town that has been able to 
leverage natural assets including miles of scenic trails, Lake Menomin, and all the amenities of a 
local poly-technical institute.  The community also boasts a number of small businesses and a 
vibrant cultural scene.  They have been able to maintain a thriving industrial base and a more 
diverse economy that extends beyond tourism.  When they launched this campaign they increased 
tourism by 500% in 12 months.  Their brand and artwork are award-winning and they were voted 
number 15 among the top twenty best small towns in America by Smithsonian magazine.  Their 
center for the arts was listed as one of the world’s most spectacular theatres by CNN, and in 2014, 
they were honored by the League of American Bicyclists with a bicycle friendly city designation.  
They will beat the odds of many small towns that struggle to maintain declining populations, 
departing businesses and deteriorating public assets.    
 
Mr. Cam Wilde introduced himself as one of the volunteers on the Branding Committee.  He is a 
graphic designer who specializes in branding.  From what he could find, the only time Alamogordo 
had any solid visual brand was when they were the Rocket City.  He liked what they did with it back 
then, but now we’ve become disjointed over the years.  A brand is a gut feeling you and your target 
audience get about a place; the logo helps sell that.  It is an ideal, a strategy of what a town is 
about.  We have talked to the citizens and the way they feel about Alamogordo today and it’s kind 
of all over the place.  Some think we are the red-headed step-child of HAFB, and we love 
Holloman but we have our own civic pride to think about.  This does not encroach on the New 
Mexico True campaign at all.  That target audience is out of the state and visually it brands all New 
Mexico cities the same way.  Someone said we are both in the same relay race and New Mexico 
True passes the baton to Alamogordo itself.   
 
Mrs. Megan Wade, Senior Executive Assistant/PIO said she represented the City of Alamogordo at 
the Branding meetings.  She showed the concept they had come up with: ALAMOGORDO – 
DISCOVER / EXPLORE / LAUNCH.  These three words are what give us that ‘gut feeling’ about 
Alamogordo and we liked it because of its broad appeal.  She gave the example of a snow-bird or 
tourist wanting to learn more about Alamogordo.  The first thing you do is Discover - look at the 
climate; Explore – look at the blue sky, the parks, the forest; Launch – you decide to come here for 
your vacation or to retire.  There are five reasons why people relocate their business: labor and 
workforce, desire to meet a new market, upgrading facilities or equipment, desire to lower their cost 
and increase their cash flow, and quality of life.  Quality of life is one of the commission’s main 
objectives for this year.  With this brand we encourage business to discover that Alamogordo has a 
large retired military population as well as other people to create a strong labor force.  They will 
discover Alamogordo has the space to develop and bring in commercial activity.  They explore 
other areas like the recreation in and around the town, they discover we have one of the lowest 
crime rates in the state and our education systems are receiving top awards with graduating 
seniors receiving millions in scholarships.  That helps create a great quality of life.  What of the 
people already here?  She mentioned that she grew up here, came back and rediscovered a lot 
about Alamogordo she had lost when she left.  There are some who discover they want to raise 
their kids here because there are opportunities for their children.  That’s why we really love this 
DISCOVER / EXPLORE / LAUNCH.    
 
Dr. Juan Garcia, NMSU-A commented on where the college is on the branding idea.  He said the 
University has the same goal as the city; we want students to stay, invest in their education and 
then launch their careers.  When he showed this idea to his administration they had a good 
connection with it.  Not only does it resonate with what we want our students to do, but our logo for 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 3 OF 15     
    
the University is ‘All About Discovery’.  We had a focus group with the staff and they had positive 
comments about the excitement of the logo and how it helps the campus become excited.  When 
we had a focus group with the students, one remarked it had ‘good curl’.  He said we will continue 
into the fall with focus groups when there are more students.  Our president, administration, staff 
and students like it.    
 
Mrs. Megan Wade read some comments received.  One was from Yvette Herrell who is the 
president of the Tularosa Basin Historical Society (TBHS).  Her comments were very positive.  Mrs. 
Wade said a poll had been put on the City website and it produced one of the biggest responses 
we’ve ever had; 39% decided on the DISCOVER / EXPLORE / LAUNCH.  HAFB and White Sands 
Missile Range (WSMR) did the same and got very similar responses.  
 
Mr. Cam Wilde came back to say there will be a logo later; that is usually the last stage.  We are 
still strategizing and the plan is to hit everyone in the city in order to narrow it down some more.  
Last comes the visual part and that could be a while. 
 
Mr. Espiritu said this is pretty exciting and something we have lacked in our town.  He thanked all 
the volunteers who worked on this.  At this point, we want the commission’s continued support as 
we move forward.  We know everyone may not like it, but if the majority does than it is something 
we should pursue. We would like to come back before the commission at a later date with more 
results of this, and possibly reserve the right, the privilege to maybe ask for some funding in order 
to promote and market it in the future. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler appreciated all the work done on this and he really liked the concept.  
He felt it fits Alamogordo very well and it really clicks.     
 
Commissioner Turnbull asked how they are going to get it out to more people in the city.  Mr. 
Espiritu said that’s the next step and we are meeting tomorrow to discuss it.  We will probably visit 
with civic groups and fraternal organizations, do another survey, do something in the water bills 
and advertise on marquees.  We need their buy-in as stakeholders. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked how the final decision is to be made and who will make it.  Mayor 
Galea said the commission would decide whether to adopt it or not.  She felt by consensus the 
commission was in support of the committee moving forward to gather consensus from the 
community.  She was excited about the brand and remarked the city stands to gain the most with 
increased GRT revenues and businesses, and she felt the city should pay to design the logo.  She 
hoped OCEDC would use the completed logo to help recruit businesses.   
 
City Manager Stahle thought it was marvelous but he didn’t want to launch until it is ready; until the 
graphics are ready in order to capture the essence of the tag line.  He was cautious of getting too 
far ahead with the tag line until there were graphics presented to the commission so we could take 
action and work together with other entities.   
 
Mr. Espiritu thought it was important for whatever logo is developed, that it will be the central 
theme for the city and other entities in the city would cascade from it.  There will still be uniqueness 
and individuality of organizations that may choose to use those three words in their current logo.  
Mrs. Wade said just to be clear, those three words are just a tagline; the DNA of the concept.  The 
logo would be the final process and we would make sure it could stand the test of time.     
 
  
 2. Presentation, discussion, and possible action related to the Agreement with 

PreCheck.  WITHDRAWN. 
 
    



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 4 OF 15     
    
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

A. Mr. Harv Hamilton commented on the following: 
1) He said “the enemy of my enemy is my friend”.  At the last meeting he got his back up 

because of some of the things that were said about and by the Forest Service.  He was a 
1963 graduate of the oldest forestry school in the nation, and he felt he saw forest 
differently than anyone here.  When he returned from Viet Nam he thought forest 
management was leaning toward the environmentalists.  When he attended school, the 
only agency in the US Government contributing to the Treasury was the Forest Service.  
Now they don’t have enough money to do anything right.  Before he reported to Holloman, 
he went by Bonito Lake and thought it was a fire trap.  The next day on his way down from 
Ruidoso, he was pleased to see how Mescalero was and had no idea it was being 
managed by a different entity.  The first time he went to Cloudcroft to the lookout tower by 
Weed, he was again grossed out.  Of all the forests he has seen since he started in the 
program, Lincoln is the worst managed.  It isn’t necessarily who is there, but what it has 
become.  When he hears someone say one forest is different from another he asks why, 
why do they get that idea and who allowed it to get that way.   

2) He hasn’t been back to Bonito Lake since 1973, but has been told it is the only green spot 
up there.  The silt is because of the Forest Service and that burn up there.  We are waiting 
on FEMA to give us the money so we can dredge.  He believed we would be lucky if 15 
years from now it would be forested enough so we wouldn’t have to be concerned with silt.  
Last time he had been here the ranchers showed up with about six hours notice of the 
meeting; the Forest Service had more.  Back east we had the Dutch Elm disease that had 
been introduced from Europe; we have Africanized bees because of a screw up; up on the 
mountain we have a screw up with an overpopulation of elk introduced from Wyoming; iIn 
Pennsylvania the deer are overpopulating the entire state.  He understood the city fathers, 
many years back, sold a bunch of land to the Forest Service for $1.00.  Now, to check on 
our water sources up there, we have to negotiate with the Forest Service.   

3) He and his dad had been at odds over the Senior Center.  Mr. Hamilton said that at every 
election he saw a bond issue where the seniors voted themselves money to improve the 
Senior Center.  Then if they come with hat in hand to this body for more, they should be told 
they don’t deserve anymore. 

4) Mr. Hamilton said it seemed that the insert in the water bill was the only way the city got 
word out concerning activities.  He wanted to see more in there about upcoming meetings 
and less long discussions.   

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
3. Approve the Minutes of May 27 2014 Regular Meeting of the Alamogordo City 

Commission.  (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
4. Approve the statement related to the Executive Session of May 27, 2014. (Renee 

Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
5. Approve granting a waiver of the permit free for a Special Fireworks Display Permit 

for the 4th of July Fireworks Display at the New Mexico Museum of Space History. 
(Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
7. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No 1467amending Sections 28-02-100 and 

28-03-080 of the Code concerning Water and Sewer Rates.  [Roll call vote required] 
(Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 5 OF 15     
    
8. Approve Change Order No. 2, RFQ No. 2013-05 to CDM Smith, Inc. related to the 

engineering and design services for the 1MGD Interim Desalination Plant project, in 
an amount not to exceed $6,113.98, including tax.  (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 

 
10. Approve the subdivision plat for Palo Duro Phase 3. (Marc South, City Planner) 
 
Item No. 6 was removed by Mayor Galea and No. 9 was removed by Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler 
from the Consent agenda for further discussion. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve the consent agenda. 3, 4, 5, 7, 8 & 10.  Mayor 
Pro-Tem Rentschler seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken for Item No. 7.  Motion 
carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
6. Approve Resolution No. 2014-26 removing uncollectible and unsecured utility, 

library, housing authority, recreation center and other miscellaneous accounts from 
the City's accounts receivable. [Roll call vote required] (Helen Viscarra-Reno, Assistant 
Finance Director) 

 
Mayor Galea removed this from the Consent Agenda.  She understood that by statute, every four 
years we write off uncollectible debt.  She did approve writing off this amount by statute; it is 
$42,000.  She wanted the commission to consider adding to this the $4,000 billed to the German 
Air Force for services provided by security and not wait four years.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez said maybe next time we’ll consider it.  This time it is too fresh.  Mayor 
Galea asked if he meant next year and he said no, maybe next time we will consider it. That would 
be like someone paying their water bill last month and asking to write it off this month; we need to 
extend it to the minimum requirement.  We only do these every twelve months and we would 
create problems with the residents we didn’t write off.    
 
Mayor Galea understands his point but thought it was different than a water bill.  She thought it 
would be a good PR move to write it off now versus waiting four years from now.   
 
Commissioner Straface said he didn’t want to revisit the whole issue but he also felt there were 
things the Germans were responsible for that we did not receive payment for.  He felt the same as 
Commissioner Hernandez. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve Resolution No. 2014-26 removing 
uncollectible and unsecured utility, library, housing authority, recreation center and other 
miscellaneous accounts from the City's accounts receivable.  Commissioner Turnbull 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
  
9. Approve Change Order No 3, Public Works Bid No. 2013-006 to Burn Construction 

Co., Inc. as it related to Intersection Improvements at Indian Wells Road and 
Washington Avenue/Pecan Drive in an reduced amount not to exceed $15,485.57, 
excluding of NMGRT. (Jason Thomas, City Engineer) 

   
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked about the reduced amount. 
 
City Engineer Thomas said it was a credit of $15,486 and did not include the right turn lane 
improvement.  This change order includes three items.  We substituted the stick-on 3-M tape for 
the crosswalks; we had a conflict with lane stripping when we were opening the intersection that 
needed to be addressed; the third was a credit for all the items on the contract, basically an add or 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 6 OF 15     
    
delete credit for all items on the contract based on actual measured in place quantities.  Those 
three items together total $15,000.  We had talked originally about adding in the right turn lane 
improvements to this contract, but because the contract had been open since February and 
demobilized we should open it up to other bidders.  We are about 85% done with the design and 
plan to advertise on June 22nd with the bid opening on July 9th.  You’ll see a recommendation on 
July 22nd.  We are thinking it is a 30 day contract so construction time will be in August. With the 
savings from this and an unencumbered balance in 109 (Street Capital) of about $79,000, there is 
a nice little kitty to do the right turn lane project.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler was glad to see a reduced amount since it is not a normal thing to see.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve Change Order No 3, Public Works Bid No. 
2013-006 to Burn Construction Co., Inc. as it related to Intersection Improvements at Indian 
Wells Road and Washington Avenue/Pecan Drive in an reduced amount not to exceed 
$15,485.57, excluding of NMGRT.  Commissioner Straface seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried by a vote of 6-0-0. 
    
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A-1. Discussion, and possible action, related to a finders fee for economic development. 

(Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said when the mayor first brought this up he thought it was a great idea 
but he has changed his mind.  There are several issues that could happen with this.  For instance, 
if you have a lost child and you offer a reward you receive lots of calls; some are legitimate and 
some are not.  Anytime you offer an incentive, you start getting lots of people coming in to see how 
they can do it.  This could not apply to any of us but in actuality it could because he could get 
someone from the audience to present it and then split it 50/50, and no one would ever know.  It 
puts competition on what we already have which is our own economic development council and 
what they do.  Not that competition isn’t good, but this is dirty competition.  We partner with them 
and don’t pay them to bring anybody in.  If they bring a business in then they need to get the 
finder’s fee.   If a so called ‘dirty’ company comes in with an offer but for whatever reason we turn 
them down, then the one who brought them in is still going to want the finder’s fee for bringing 
them in.  You will need a lot of rules and regulations that would be too much, and he wondered 
about the legality of a finder’s fee.  
 
Mayor Galea said we did speak with the city attorney and he talked about qualifying entities.  We 
are on the same page.  She agreed with Commissioner Hernandez concerning dirty companies 
and kick-backs to the commission, but said we are bound by an oath and are ethical public 
servants.  The competition for OCEDC is not at all the case; they would not be excluded and the 
finder’s fee would be for anyone who brought a company in.  Her idea of the finder’s fee, 
hypothetically, is 1% of the annual first year payroll of a company which would be paid five years 
after the company is vested in the city.  It could be figured through a payroll audit from our internal 
auditor.  If Jane Doe brings in a qualifying entity that brings in a $5 million dollar payroll company, 
the finder’s fee would be $50,000 due to her five years later.  We could make it more of an 
incentive if the finder’s fee went to a charity of the person’s choice.  If Jane Doe’s charity was 
C.O.P.E., then the $50,000 would go to them in five years after the company was vested in the 
community.  That is incentive for the whole community as well as OCEDC.  A qualifying entity 
would not be retail or service companies.  She had spoken with a realtor who knew of a food 
manufacturing company in El Paso that is looking at Alamogordo because of the new incentives of 
lesser taxes than the state.  The City of Alamogordo stands to gain most if more companies and 
jobs come here. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler addressed the city attorney asking him if he was comfortable with this.  



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 7 OF 15     
    
City Attorney Thies said we wouldn’t want to call it a finder’s fee, but in conjunction with an eligible 
project agreement with an eligible company that is anything but retail, you are allowed to take 
economic development tax and use it for professional services related to the project agreement.  It 
wouldn’t necessarily be a finder’s fee, but if someone were to bring us a project, that project would 
be appropriate to use economic development money to pay them for their services.  If you wanted 
to establish a finder’s fee and use some other source of funds, as long as it was structured 
properly in that you are getting something in return for the payment of the money, primarily the new 
business, it would be conceptually possible. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we don’t already do that, to the extent that if a company comes 
in looking for economic development money and meet all the criteria, we reward them.  This goes 
beyond to somebody that knew the company before they showed up.  He was concerned about the 
perception that is crucial from this commission, especially.  He felt there was a lot of room for 
misperception.  
 
Mayor Galea said she has spoken to several groups and no one has misconstrued this, so she 
didn’t know what perception he was alluding to.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said when you give 
someone $50,000 then there might be more to perceive.  Mayor Galea said she see’s his point. If 
$50,000 were given to a person or their charity of choice after a company had been here for five 
years and provided in their first year a payroll of $5 million dollars providing new jobs in the city, 
she didn’t know what the perception would be other than something positive.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin said the discussion here is whether to have Staff move forward and not to 
actually decide on it tonight, so he was in favor of working with this idea especially if it would help 
Alamogordo in the long run.  He was not opposed to having Staff bring those details of the finder ’s 
fee.   
 
Commissioner Straface said the concept is reasonable to consider but thought the details would be 
important.  He wanted them to bring forward points you would consider putting in an ordinance for 
discussion.  Overall, he had some concern with the concept but wanted to look at the details. 
 
Commissioner Turnbull thought this was what OCEDC was for, so she needed to see something 
more than this.  She was not for giving someone money when OCEDC does this already. 
 
Mayor Galea understood and said that the city is partnered with OCEDC to do that.  This would 
strengthen OCEDC and make it a community effort.   
 
City Manager Stahle said after hearing the idea put forward he thought it had potential.  After he 
thought about it, it reminded him of the old days when we had bounties, when we awarded people 
by giving them money to bring in the bad guys.  He didn’t know that it couldn’t be done and he had 
not seen it done; he thought the devilish detail is where we are going to get hung up.  It is really the 
how and who you determine earns the fee, and he thought it could be really challenging to make 
sure the proper person is rewarded.  We can do some work on this but he didn’t want anyone 
leaving the room thinking it is a done deal.  It is a big challenge when you put money on the table 
and potentially create a policy that will generate interest by multiple people.  For example, several 
folks coming forward about a company coming in and they all feel like they deserve the reward.  
How we determine who earns that money will be what he focuses on and will bring  back to you 
before you prep any kind of ordinance, if that is your direction tonight. 
 
Mayor Galea thought that was fair and asked if anyone didn’t agree with that approach. 
 
City Manager Stahle added that up until we settle on those issues of who and how, he would be 
against it, because he feared the consequence of arguing who should get it.  Let’s work a little 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 8 OF 15     
    
slower and not get too far ahead of this.  He said there was a lot going on in the city now, so don’t 
expect it to show up on the next agenda.   
 
Commissioner Straface said that’s another issue we need to look at; staff time and how we want 
them to spend their time.  Is this an issue we want to put forward now with everything else on our 
staff’s agendas.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said you brought up a point about a realtor who possibly had an 
interested company.   He said this is my home and community and whether you pay him or not, 
this is his second term in a 16 year span just because this is his community.  If that person is the 
same as he is, that this is their home, then they would do that without an incentive.  He said they 
should give the tip to Mike Espiritu because that’s his job.  The incentive for him would be to make 
Alamogordo a better place to live; that is the important fact.  If it is always going to be about the 
dollars than we aren’t ever going to get anywhere.  Like the logo, this is Alamogordo, this is home, 
and this is where I’ll always be - that is what is important.   
 
Mayor Galea appreciated the civic pride and felt the same way.  The only reason she thought of 
this idea was because we have talked so much about economic development and this is 
something outside of the box.  In psychological studies of humans, we are either intrinsically or 
extrinsically motivated; some by civic pride and some by dollars.  This would address all the above.  
She asked the commission if they would like the staff to move forward and bring back ideas at a 
much later date of who this would apply to and how entities would apply and be able to receive the 
notice of being able to receive that funding.  
   
Commissioner Hernandez said as time allows he didn’t have a problem with it, but he didn’t think it 
was important enough to be put up front.  Mayor Galea agreed. 
 
Commissioner Straface was opposed to the time involved at this point. 
 
Commissioner Turnbull was opposed to the finder’s fee.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if they would be ok with her working on this issue herself at home.  
Commissioner Straface said he would if he could look at details. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the city attorney could put it on the bottom of the stack.  City 
Attorney Thies said it wouldn’t see the light of day for quite some time. 
 
Commissioner Baldwin said economic development is all we’ve been talking about for the last two 
years, and even if a finder’s fee isn’t what comes out of this idea, something positive could come 
from it.  He didn’t think we would be doing our due diligence if we didn’t work it. 
 
Mayor Galea didn’t think it would be a bad headline that the commission had a bounty out for 
economic development.  She said there are three opposed to allow Staff to take time to develop 
this further.  Staff will not move forward to developing this any further and she will work on it in her 
own time. 
  
A-2. Discussion, and possible action, related to a Demolition Incentive and revising the 

condemnation policy. (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
Mayor Galea said this is related to economic development and generation of new growth.  Our 
condemnation policy is very loose and this would focus on our commercial area along White Sands 
Blvd.  It would strengthen our condemnation policy for old and dilapidated buildings. It would be 
much like they use in Kissimmee, FL, and she explained the program.  There is a benefit to the city 
by redeveloping new businesses but would start with a condemnation policy we would have to 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 9 OF 15     
    
revisit as a commission.  She asked if anyone was opposed to allowing Staff to bring forward to us 
a new condemnation policy for consideration. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the concern he has is when we condemn a piece of property we 
pay fair market value, so he would be willing to look at this but where would the money come from 
to buy property on, for instance, White Sands Blvd.  We might have to kick in $100,000 to have 
someone tear down and redevelop; we could get way ahead of ourselves with this.  We already 
have money to go in if a building needs to be torn down and he asked if we condemn for economic 
reasons like that.  There are times to condemn, but it might be a harder pill to swallow for a lot of 
people if they weren’t happy about it.  If we are going to use it in order to get them to do something 
with it, then he is interested in it.  We already have this, in that we currently allocate money to 
abate properties because of weeds and for the buildings themselves.  What we don’t have is a 
target building and if we did, he might be more willing to consider.   
 
Mayor Galea said that’s why she brought it up during the preliminary budget hearings, because it 
would be something we do yearly as we fund the program.  For $100,000 per year we would only 
condemn as much as that amount would allow.  Currently, when we abate properties and demolish 
them it is at the city’s cost, whereas under the demolition incentive it would be at the expense of 
the private business.  The benefit to the city would be the generation of new buildings and new 
growth. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said this was one of those which sounded like a good idea in the 
beginning but if there was interest in it, it would already be done.  For instance, the corner of White 
Sands Blvd. and 2nd Street where Domino’s Pizza bought the whole area and then decided to build 
elsewhere.  Now it will sit empty until Allsup’s can work a deal with Taiwan Kitchen.  There could 
be empty properties for a long time and he had a hard time with taking someone’s properties.  He 
did support cleaning up White Sands Blvd., but some of those properties are too narrow, too small 
to meet the parking ratios so you will have to take multiple properties.  He wasn’t for twisting 
somebody’s arm and felt a lot of those people would move on with the right incentive.  Until 
something comes along to fill these areas, he saw this as problematic at this point.  He stated that 
he supported the mayor’s thought and what she was wanting to do, but didn’t see the economic 
structure there.  Maybe this was another thing we need to figure out how to fund.  There are empty 
properties currently that people are not buying, so why would they buy a property with a building on 
it.   
 
Mayor Galea understood what he is saying.  The reason it hasn’t been done before is because one 
couldn’t afford the cost of the property plus the demolition.  This would be the city condemning 
because the building is dilapidated and not because we want to seize a perfectly good building.  A 
business would want to utilize that space and pay only for the demolition and being gifted with the 
cost of the property by building new.  That in itself would be the incentive.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez brought up the property he referenced above.  His grandmother owned 
that property back in the 1960’s and it has been empty since then.  There are other properties 
within that area that are the same.  Second Street is going to be more viable than anywhere north 
because everyone is interested in the stoplights where the business traffic is.  He felt we should 
build up the economic development structure before we do this and said again he wasn’t opposed 
to the idea. 
 
City Manager Stahle asked what the goal was.  If it is to bring high-paying jobs then he wasn’t sure 
these locations on White Sands Blvd. were the place major business would want to locate because   
normally it was the industrial park area they were looking for.  White Sands Blvd. is more suited to 
retail and restaurant-type space.  We have to look at that; who you are targeting with this policy.  
He knew the Florida community was larger than us and might have a different scenario in terms of 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 10 OF 15     
    
their finances.  The city is tied to GRT so having some of this even apply to retail may be all you 
are trying to attain.  He wanted them to think about the goal. 
 
Mayor Galea said her reason for bringing it forward was not high paying jobs.  It was for quality of 
life, beautification, and new growth and development.  She thought that sponsors economic growth 
and development.  Doctors want to move here with their families when we are a beautiful city. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said his consideration was the city taking out a building on a 60’ normal 
sized lot and having something put back in there with $100,000 of general fund money.  He 
suggested taking that same amount of money and going out to White Sands Blvd. towards Hwy. 
70.  He drove to Carlsbad and went through Artesia which was quite impressive.  He remembered 
it wasn’t the same as 10-15 years ago.  They’ve done some things with trees that he could 
envision doing going out towards Holloman.  The demolition the city has done on buildings, and he 
noted the building at Pecan and Indian Wells, has been impressive.  If we have buildings not being 
kept up to code we can take them down if the owner is non-responsive.  The first time you have an 
owner who is responsive you will be tying up the attorneys time, also.  He said he liked the idea 
and would like to see White Sands Blvd. beautified.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said another thing is we need to change our ordinance to state what will 
be rebuilt once a building is demolished.  Where Martin Tire is now used to be Tiny’s Tire Town 
which was a lean-to and now is a metal building; it was only a slight improvement.  If you are going 
to only put up metal buildings then it won’t do anything for us.  You have to do all that part before 
you do this part, and that will take time.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if he thinks the next step would be to have the Planning & Zoning Commission 
review building codes along White Sands Blvd. and other industrial areas.  Commissioner 
Hernandez said it wasn’t just P&Z, it would be several committees bringing something forward.  
Look at all the Dollar Stores popping up around town; they are in there a short while and then they 
move on leaving an empty metal building.  Some of those things should be addressed.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if he would also be in favor of reviewing the condemnation policy.  As you drive 
down White Sands Blvd. there are some buildings that are dilapidated, but there is no 
condemnation because our policy is loose.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said maybe the city could help someone who is willing to clean up their 
property.  The biggest part of that are the tipping fees one has to pay.  If you have a property worth 
$20,000-$30,000 and it will cost you $50,000 to clean it up, why would you do it.  If we had a 
property owner incentive instead of builders incentive then more people might do it.  Mayor Galea 
thanked him and said she would like to research that idea.  Commissioner Turnbull agreed with 
Commissioner Hernandez to make it for any property owner in town. 
 
Commissioner Baldwin believed there was a request for Staff to bring a list of dilapidated buildings.  
He would like to see a list of dilapidated buildings in order to decide if an ordinance would be 
created for five structures or 35 structures.   
 
Mayor Galea asked the city manager if that could come back at a future meeting.  City Manager 
Stahle said absolutely.  He said one of the points this brings up is the state law concerning 
demolition.  What are you allowed to legally demolish as a government entity?  You might be 
surprised what it takes to condemn a property and take it, so let us put that report together along 
with a list of properties along White Sands Blvd. only, at least from the curb view and not going into 
the buildings, that might be candidates.    
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said when it comes to dilapidated buildings there is a minimum 
maintenance standard to be looked up.  As long as it is secured and has a roof on it, essentially 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 11 OF 15     
    
there isn’t anything we can do about it.  The other thing is if we look at an incentive for property 
owners, the anti-donation clause kicks in and we simply can’t give money.  The portion the city 
gets of it isn’t a lot and it is tough when it comes to the private property laws in the state.    
  
Mayor Galea had spoken to the city attorney in the past concerning anti-donation and if you can 
quantify the value given back to the community in beautification and improved quality of life is 
equivalent to the incentive, then they would qualify for the funding.   
  
Commissioner Hernandez said tipping fees are usually where the cost in incurred.  You have to be 
careful of the contractors who do this for a living.  You could do it during the Big Give or United 
Way Day of Caring or other smaller projects like that.  It will take a lot of people and some time to 
get this right.  He said the Comet Building front is beautiful but from the side you see it is a metal 
building.  His thought was to cover both sides and the front to disguise the fact it is a metal 
building.   
 
Mayor Galea asked the commission if they would be comfortable for Staff to work on this idea and 
bring back to the commission a list of dilapidated buildings that could be addressed under a 
stronger condemnation policy. 
 
Commissioner Straface said he would amend it to follow what the city manager suggested; to bring 
forward what the state law does to govern us, look at that list of dilapidated buildings and then 
have that discussion. 
 
Mayor Galea said that sounds like a good idea.  No one opposed this. 
 
A-3. Discussion, and possible action, to direct staff to prepare an ordinance to prohibit 

the feeding of pigeons in the City of Alamogordo. (Robert Rentschler, Mayor Pro-Tem) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he brought this item because of a letter of request from Gaye M. 
Walton.  He believed pigeons have gotten out of hand and he has watched and knows of people 
who feed them.  His wife tried feeding other birds and found out you can’t feed them without 
attracting flocks of pigeons. Short of figuring out how to eradicate them he mentioned a bounty of 
$.50 per bird and 12 year old kids armed with pellet guns who could take care of the problem in a 
week.  They could bring them to City Clerk Cantin’s office for the money.  Short of that, we need to 
make sure people aren’t buying bird food to feed the pigeons, because they will become a problem 
that we will be investing tens of thousands of dollars to remove.  This is a good way to begin 
stemming the population and he wanted an ordinance that would simply say don’t feed the pigeons 
or you will be fined.   
 
City Manager Stahle said they have been looking at this.  There are other cities that have 
developed ordinances banning the feeding of pigeons, not hunting them.  We can bring options 
back to you. 
 
Mayor Galea had spoken to Ms. Walton about this and had discussed the ordinance in 
Albuquerque, and how challenging it would be to enforce this without creating a new position in 
Code Enforcement.  To look for any bird feeder and define any retail store selling bird feed would 
be really challenging, and Ms. Walton agreed there is an easier way to address the problem.  She 
said the Same Day Medical Clinic had a lot of birds because of the structure of their building that 
had an awning they could get under.  The Mayor thought the City or the Chamber of Commerce 
could address putting up netting around that business’ awning.  That was her chief concern since 
there was a large population of birds which was not a healthy or safe thing, especially at a medical 
clinic.  She recognized our Code Enforcement officers were out taking care of other things and 
wouldn’t have much time to address this issue.   
 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 12 OF 15     
    
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said that was fine, too.  We had the old Wal-Mart that was inhabited by 
about 20,000 of these vermin, which has since been taken care of by boarding it all up.  Maybe we 
could add that to the ordinance, but at the same time we have people who go out in the fields to 
feed these birds.  It isn’t like we had to create a special position for this, but to just try to get the 
people who are spreading it out in places around the city and particularly on the ground.  He noted 
a neighbor had an awning that attracted pigeons and they have since put up flashing so the birds 
can’t get in, so he was working to keep them out of his yard.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez has actually seen a couple of places, one across from the House of 
Prayer where an older man feeds them bread and attracts a flock, that would be an easy case to 
take care of.  There’s another one at the Aspen Apartments on Washington and Aspen where a 
man feeds them.  The hospital spends a lot of money trying to deter the pigeons from various 
areas; there is one building where we spend anywhere from $14.00 to $20.00 per foot to protect 
the ledges by putting up spikes.  They are very expensive and don’t last too long because the 
pigeons tear them up and the sun deteriorates them.  The hospital also puts netting around areas 
and he said there was about $50,000 invested in one building for pigeon protection.  He mentioned 
the person who is feeding the birds at Aspen and Washington is only about two blocks from one of 
the hospital’s main buildings where he has pigeon problems.  They are living at this building and 
eating at the apartments.  He also saw at the gas station on Vermont and 10th St. a couple of guys 
who backed up a truck to the awning and for three or four days in a row they took truckloads of 
pigeon droppings from the awning top.  If you look at the Lowe’s grocery gas station you’ll see a 
net that covers their awning which he guessed cost about $10,000.  It is a very expensive deterrent 
and there are some people who actually feed just the pigeons. 
 
Mayor Galea said that was a very good point and felt this was a public health issue.  Before we 
jump into an ordinance, she wanted the city to work with the Public Health Department to address 
it as a community issue.  Re-educating the public would be a positive thing.   
 
Commissioner Turnbull asked how we would prove someone is feeding pigeons.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Rentschler said you can’t unless you have a Codes Enforcement person who witnesses it.  What it 
does is give you a law that many people will obey.  He gave the example of the fact he hasn’t had 
a speeding ticket in a long time because it is the law and he tries not to violate it.   
 
Commissioner Straface felt the city manager had a good suggestion for the staff to research other 
ordinances for the commission to look at before any action is taken.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if  the commission has any objection to that and no one objected. 
   
A-4. Appointment of a Ex-Officio representative to the Committee of 50.  (Renee Cantin, 

City Clerk) 
 
Mayor Galea said this was added to the agenda after the Committee of 50 pointed out their bi-laws 
stated they must have ex-officio representatives from both the City and County Commissions.  She 
had assumed the mayor was the ex-officio representative. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said if that’s not the case, it needs to be. He felt the mayor should be 
the ex-officio for these kinds of committees in Alamogordo and was surprised this was not the 
case. 
 
Mayor Galea said we would need to show in our meeting minutes an appointment, and she would 
be happy to serve as the ex-officio representative as she has been.  She would be giving a five 
minute report to the city on things benefiting HAFB and Alamogordo. 
 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 13 OF 15     
    
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve Mayor Galea to serve as the Ex-Officio 
Representative.  Commissioner Straface seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 
6-0-0. 
  
11. Appointments to Boards & Committees. (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
Mayor Galea stated if there are no objections, she would reappoint Sharon Hodges to the Mayor’s 
Committee on Aging and Laura Blackmon to the Senior Volunteer Programs Advisory Council.  All 
were in agreement. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (continued if needed) 
 

A. Mike Espiritu commented on the following: 
Mr. Mike Espiritu wanted to make sure the commissioners had received the announcement for 
Thursday at 1:00 p.m. at PreCheck.  Please RSVP if you are going to attend and arrive at 12:45 to 
greet the Governor.  That invitation is also for the city manager and city attorney. 
 
Mayor Galea thanked him and was looking forward to attending.   
    
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
A) City Manager Stahle handed the mayor a report that identified some of the major projects we 
have and their timelines.  He pointed out that the first sheet showed the Fund 118 projects to be 
done by the end of the calendar year.  The second sheet identifies the conceptual schedule for the 
First/Florida realignment project and we are looking at a couple of years to get it completed.  The 
last sheet is the Family Fun Center and we have had a lot of calls on this project.  He said he 
would get this information to those people.   It identifies the steps to be taken in order to complete 
the project.  As with any schedule, there are all kinds of things that can cause the schedule to go 
bad, and the bottom on the last sheet lists some of the challenges for the Fun Center.  It gives 
some targeted dates and we hope to have soft openings sometime in July/August of 2016.  He 
mentioned the runway extension at the airport; we should be advertising for the construction in the 
next few weeks.  The bid award should be at the late August commission meeting for you all to 
look at, with construction taking place sometime in October.  We are estimating it will take around 
six months. 
 
Mayor Galea asked when we could expect to have the design for the parking apron.  City Manager 
Stahle didn’t think there would be a lot of outside engineering and it would be done in-house.   
 
Mayor Galea asked for the due date for sale of bonds for the Family Fun Center (FFC).  City 
Manager Stahle said on the next agenda you will be approving the financial advisor for the city and 
we will work with that person in order to determine the best time.  The market will drive a lot of that 
and the market isn’t bad at this time, so he was hopeful we will move fairly quickly; there are 
consequences for being too early.  He said the commission had authorized us to charge to the 
various projects some of our expenses in the meantime, so when the bond actually sells will be 
market driven more than anything else.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said in the earlier budget meetings we had authorized $300,000 going 
to the Space Hall of Fame to digitize the IMAX and that we would be receiving matching capital 
outlay funds from the state.  He asked if we have written a warrant yet.  City Manager Stahle said 
he didn’t believe we had, but we have bidding communication and museum personnel have 
approached him and given him a tour of the facility they will be improving.  They have gone well 
above your requirements, and he expected that check to be written at any time.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he had heard there are some at that facility who do not want to 
digitize the IMAX and instead do something else with it.  He felt we were tied to digitizing and we 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 14 OF 15     
    
would not be writing them a blank check.  City Manager Stahle told him absolutely not.  It is being 
digitized but not under the IMAX program.  It will be a very similar program that is much more cost 
effective, and will do the very same thing.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he would want to know 
of any changes before they allocated the money.  City Manager Stahle said it is still digitization.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he didn’t vote to do it up at the Space Hall, he voted to improve 
the IMAX theatre as a draw for Alamogordo; if it is not there it needs to come back to us.  City 
Manager Stahle said ok.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said we allocated that money for a specific 
purpose, and if that purpose is not being followed than we need to be the first people in line to say, 
‘Tell us why.’   
 
City Manager Stahle said he understood and it was his understanding the agreement was to 
digitize, not necessarily to buy the IMAX brand.  He said he would go back and study that and ask.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said if you are talking about using the same building and they are going 
to get rid of the IMAX deal, then he would like to know that since IMAX is certainly a draw.  City 
Manager Stahle said it is the smallest IMAX in the country.  He said he would be happy to bring the 
facility manager over for the full details, and if you are interested, go up and see them and let him 
describe all the work they will be doing to the facility.  It isn’t just the digitization of the theatre; a lot 
is going on in that building besides that.  He felt it was consistent with what the commission agreed 
to do.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler wanted the facility manager to come and report to the 
commission. 
 
Commissioner Turnbull asked about the FFC.  She is getting calls asking if the location by the 
theatre is final or not.  She asked if it was possible to put something in the City Profile about why it 
is going to be by the movie theatre, and the city manager said yes.   
  
REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION 
 
Mayor Galea reported the following: 
1) She attended the Committee of 50 meeting recently and owed the commissioners a copy of that 
report where they stated who they met with in Washington, D.C. and the positive outcomes of their 
meetings.   
2)  There had been some great farewells to Commander Croft and Commander Bingham.  There 
were a number of community members there.  We are looking forward to welcoming new 
commanders to HAFB and WSMR, and the city manager had told her we could do a community 
wide meet-and-greet at the Civic Center.  Our new Special Events Coordinator, Jason Richards will 
coordinate that event.    
3) She will be attending a Joint Use Land Study as a policy member and she welcomed any to 
attend with her.  The Technical Committee has proposed many policy adoptions.  The benefit for 
our community is joint land use with the military, with more funding for schools and other 
infrastructure as we continue to share it with the military.  The meeting will be tomorrow from 1:00-
4:00 p.m. in Las Cruces.   
4) This Saturday at 2:00 p.m., the New Mexico Museum of Space History (NMMSH) will have a 
singing of the national anthem in order to help break the record for number of singers at one time 
in combination with other museums related to the Smithsonian.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Commissioner Straface moved to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss Collective 
Bargaining Negotiations (APSOA & AFSCME) at 8:41 p.m.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler 
seconded the motion.      Roll call vote was taken by the Clerk.  Motion Carried by a vote of 
6-0-0. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
CITY COMMISSION SPECIAL BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES  
3:00 P.M.,  FIRE STATION NO. 5, 1492 S. FLORIDA, ALAMOGORDO, NM 

MAY 5, 6, 7 & 12, 13, 2014 
 

SUSIE GALEA, MAYOR               ROBERT RENTSCHLER, MAYOR PRO-TEM 
JASON BALDWIN, COMMISSIONER              DR. GEORGE STRAFACE, DISTRICT 6 COMMISSIONER 
JENNY TURNBULL, COMMISSIONER              STEPHEN THIES, CITY ATTORNEY 
AL HERNANDEZ, COMMISSIONER              RENEE CANTIN, CITY CLERK 
KATHY GILSDORF, BUDGET ANALYST LEEANN NICHOLS, CONTRACT FINANCIAL CONSULTANT 
       
    
MONDAY, MAY 5, 2014 - 3:00 P.M. 
 
Mayor Galea called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  Mayor Galea announced Mayor Pro-tem 
Rentschler and Commissioner Baldwin were not present but would be here shortly.  
 
Other Directors Present:  City Manager Jim Stahle, City Attorney Stephen Thies, City Clerk Renee 
Cantin, Contract Finance Operation Consultant LeeAnn Nichols , Assistant City Manager Matt 
McNeile, Public Works Director Brian Cesar, Police Chief Robert Duncan, Fire Chief Mikel Ward, City 
Engineer Jason Thomas, and Human Resource Manager Katie Josselyn. 
 
A. Budget Overview – Summaries 

City Manager Stahle explained how the budget was put together and what they would be looking 
at for the next few days.  He appreciated the hard work done by the staff, especially the Finance 
staff.  At this point you have a recommended budget and by the time these meetings are done it 
will be your budget.  He hoped the commission would devote this week and most of next having 
budget conversation with us and giving some direction.  The tentative budget adoption will be a 
week from tomorrow night during your regular meeting.  Before that meeting begins, we will have 
a Public Hearing on the budget and you can make whatever changes you’ve contemplated during 
these five work days.  Remember, what you have in front of you is a balanced budget, and if you 
make changes you will simply be moving money around, unless you decide to increase some tax 
or fee.  That would take some time to get officially taken care of.  What you have in front of you 
he would classify as a maintenance budget, and that is important to understand.  What he means 
by that is there isn’t really so much revenue that we could take on additional levels of service, 
staffing or even provide raises.  We are taking a cold, hard look at our financial condition and 
prepare for the future.  One of the things you will be looking at is not only this fiscal year and next, 
but looking ahead.   City Manager Stahle said he had been told they had not done that in quite 
some time, but he sincerely believed the only way to manage a major operations budget was to 
look well in advance; a five year look-ahead.   When you look ahead you have to make some 
assumptions about what revenues will be affected in what way and what expenses might have to 
be increased. This budget, even though it is maintenance, in terms of staffing there is no change; 
no new employee positions being added and none being taken away. Unfortunately, there are no 
raises provided and even more unfortunate, some of the expenses associated with this year’s 
budget have to do with things out of your control.  Number one is the Hold Harmless situation the 
legislature has placed upon jurisdictions such as Alamogordo.  That starts to show up with this 
budget and the future ones.  Number two is the Affordable Care Act that will also affect us 
starting in January.   Those two things alone are well beyond your ability to contend with; hold 
harmless is the exception.  Within the statutory provisions of the state taking your hold harmless 
away over the next 15 years, you do have some leeway to create a new tax or add to the tax rate. 
 We did not assume any such rate increases in this budget, with the exception of water and 
sewer.  We will talk about water in particular during these budget conversations.  You will also be 
requested to act on adjustments to the rates for water this coming week. He encouraged them to 
consider, and it may be a little different for some of you who have been here a while, that instead 
of going on a department by department line item review, we will cover the big picture.  He 
thought it important for this body to look at the big picture situation, make some strategic 
decisions on your finances and expenses and move on.  He didn’t know if they needed to get into 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 39 
 

the details of line item budgets for every department, particularly in the situation we find ourselves 
in of a maintenance level budget.  You can ask any question, this book is the entire thing, we will 
be happy to answer any questions and department heads have been asked to show up for 
explanations. 
 
City Manager Stahle went on to say there are some things in here he believed are necessary 
such as the capital improvement projects.  Most of those are large items you have been working 
on for decades, and those obviously have to continue such as flood control operations, the Desal 
and the sewer system improvements.  You’ll always have money in the budget for road repair 
although it will never be enough.    Then you have a capital improvement replacement program 
and he takes that very seriously.  Our staff have a problem doing their job if they don’t have the 
equipment to do it.   A great example is a policeman and a fireman; if you don’t give them the 
necessary equipment it is hard for them to protect public safety.  He said again that he takes this 
very seriously and has put some money in the budget to accommodate those things.  There isn’t 
a whole lot but it is a start and a philosophy.  One of the things on capital improvement 
replacement is if you have a philosophy and stick to it, you will develop a routine for replacing or 
repairing equipment.  He puts his money where his mouth is and you will see that in the budget 
proposal.  We are hoping you all will hear us out, we will take it in presentations and bite sized 
chunks, we’ll take breaks for refreshments.  The truth is this is one of your most important duties 
and one he knows they will take very seriously while considering the consequences.  Everything 
you say and do we’ll be paying particular attention to. How you say it and what you say can have 
effect on everyone, so it is important to hear and understand each other and work with us; make 
sure we understand what it is you would like to see different.  If we go over something and you 
don’t agree with it, please pipe up.  Kathy will essentially record those areas where it seems there 
is consensus on your part to adjust, but remember those things; next week it will be important 
enough for you to vote on them to make any changes.  We wanted to give you maximum 
flexibility over the next five days to do it as aggressively or slowly as you want.  Next Tuesday, we 
are expecting to get specific directions on what changes to make to the proposed budget, and 
then we’ll have you adopt the tentative budget that evening. 

  
 Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler joined the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Straface asked if there was a statutory limit on cash balances, cash reserves.  City 
Manager Stahle said there is a requirement that 1/12th of your operating budget be reserved and 
we do have that.  Commissioner Straface said some of the decisions that will be made to adjust 
could come from cash reserve as long as we maintain that amount, and the city manager said 
that was correct.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked about things in there for continuing projects and then asked about 
the time line to have this in to the state.  City Manager Stahle said the tentative budget had to be 
submitted to the state by the end of this month, which means we have plenty of time unless you 
delay past next Tuesday.   
 
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler asked if we would go through this front to back and City Manager 
Stahle said we will cover high points.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said in the past we have gone 
back and forth, and the city manager said we will try to limit that as much as we can.  We will 
follow the agenda as outlined.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez remarked since we are doing a five year overview, he recommended 
we, for example on capital equipment replacement, be careful how you present it because last    
year we were told one thing and now we are doing something different.  He brought up the Zia 
Trans to Las Cruces project and the monies they asked for were a one time deal, but we are 
continuing it.  He noticed Commissioner Straface’s time frame needed to be corrected under the 
Legislative Section.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 39 
 

City Manager Stahle said we want this to be a study session, an open dialogue.  Mayor Galea 
agreed.  City Manager Stahle reminded everyone this is not his first budget, nor is it for the 
department directors.  You are to represent the community’s interests and share what that is so 
we can have a budget everyone is comfortable with.  It is important for the community to 
understand this is a maintenance budget and will not be increasing or decreasing the level of 
service.  Unfortunately, we cannot add staff or add raises, and there are some expenses 
associated with the current benefit package that employees will face; they will be taking home 
slightly less.  It is of grave concern to the staff and you can’t keep motivating people without 
dollars as a major reward.  The purpose of a maintenance budget is to get our collective act 
together so that in the future we may be able to provide those raises or benefit package 
adjustments.  It is important to continue doing what you are doing, but don’t go any further.  He 
asked Contract Finance Operation Consultant LeeAnn Nichols to give her presentation. 
 
Budget Process, Budget Development, Timelines and Adoption 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols started with the PowerPoint presentation which 
will be included in the agenda book.  Today she hoped to cover the budget overview, budget 
process, the development timeline, the overall-combined funds compared to the current year, 
major revenues, expenditures by category and estimated ending fund balance.  We’ll cover 
capital equipment replacement and other equipment summary, Katie will go over the personnel 
services summary, we’ll do a five year outlook and a policy recommendation we would like to 
make for you on fund balance reserves.  We will then do the general fund overview.  If we get 
done with all that we can look at more.  On Tuesday we will discuss the special revenue funds 
overview; an overview on all fund types, as well as internal service funds and enterprise funds.  
On Wednesday we will talk more about capital equipment and the capital improvement projects 
which include the street capital projects.  The following Monday we will cover debt service, trust 
and agencies and outside agencies.  On our final day, Tuesday, we will discuss any unfinished 
budget items and this is where we will bring back a list of things we feel you had a consensus 
over and then have you vote on that at 4:30 p.m.  We will talk about the fund reserve policy as 
well and would like you to consider adopting one of those.  We will then be adopting the 
preliminary FY15 budget at the regular commission meeting that evening. 
 
She explained the budget process saying it basically starts in January when Finance puts 
together the budget worksheets for the department directors.  It includes a two year actual – the 
current year, year to date and then we ask them to re-project for the current year.  We use those 
projections for our beginning balances for the new fiscal year.  The departments key their 
information into the budget itself and in March the budget analyst compiles the data into one 
budget document for review.  Then we do city manager department meetings where the city 
manager reviews each departmental budget with the department director and makes changes as 
he feels necessary.   The budget analyst then compiles the data for final review and from that, 
after the city manager gives the OK, it is compiled to form the city commission’s budget books.  
The DFA requires we hold these Public Hearings for budget adoption. We adopt the preliminary 
budget at a regular commission meeting which will be on May 13th.   The preliminary budget is 
due to the state by June 1st.  FY14 year-end closing carryover balances, the final budget will be 
brought to you on July 18th.  That is due to the state by July 30th.   
 
Overall-Combined Funds – Revenues, Expenditures, etc. 
Ms. Nichols said this is an overview of all funds combined, and shows the beginning balances for 
FY14 compared to FY15; the dollar difference and percentage difference.  We go through 
revenues, transfers in and out, expenditures and then give you an ending fund balance.  With all 
funds combined in the current fiscal year, we began the year with about $65 million with 
estimated revenues of $53 million, transfers in and out that are transfers we make in between 
funds that always match, and then expenditures of $76 million, net revenues of $23 million that 
we used from our fund balance, and we ended with a total of $42 million.  We are projecting we 
are going to end that as of June 30, 2014 and start the new year on July 1, 2014.  Our projections 
for revenues for FY15 are nearly $51 million which is a $2.3 million dollar decrease over the prior 
year; 4% less.  This is primarily due to the fact the City recognized loan proceeds from the NMFA 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 39 
 

in 2014 for the RO project that totaled $1.9 million.  In the transfers in and out, they decreased by 
$2.1 million; they include not only transactions for debt service and moving capital resources for 
projects, it also includes subsidized operations to the general fund.  The major difference is 
contributed to transfers related to capital resources.   
 
City Manager Stahle said one thing that helps people understand a government budget is that it 
is nothing but a planning tool that shows as of a certain day how much money you have in the 
bank that you haven’t spent but plan on spending.  Major construction projects take a long time 
with some of them requiring so much time, we put money in the bank and wait until the account is 
built up before spending it.  It is a financial plan and a freeze-frame picture of where we are.  
 
Commissioner Straface asked about some differences and if they were primarily a result of 
reduced gross receipts.  Ms. Nichols said the primary reason we used the $23 million of the fund 
balance is because we had large projects.  Our expenditures of $76 million in FY14 show we 
have a tremendous amount of large projects such as the RO project, sewer project, major road 
projects and flood control projects.  Ms. Nichols said we will have more details on those projects 
coming up. She said the expenditures are $22 million less attributable basically to the capital 
improvement projects.   In the FY15 proposed budget, we are proposing to use $3.1 million of the 
fund balance. We will go over all this. 

 
Major Revenues with Assumptions used (including GRT/Hold Harmless), rate increases, 
etc.    
Ms. Nichols continued with Revenue Assumptions they did when they projected FY15 revenues.  
In the GRT, since we had such a downturn in the current year that was unexpected, we felt like 
we might be leveling out and will be ok, but we took a conservative estimate of .73%.  That was 
taken from the five year average. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler restated that she was saying that was over the last year less the 
million dollars we are down in gross receipts that you expect to see .73% above that lower 
number, and she agreed. 

 
City Manager Stahle said let’s define what we talked about when we mentioned conservative 
budgeting.  When you are budgeting in the government arena you never want to underestimate 
your expenses or overestimate your revenues.  To do so is catastrophic; you have to be able to 
make sure you aren’t going to spend more than your budget says and you have to make sure 
your collections are at least what they said.  If they had used that .73% last year we would still be 
in a financial crunch because nobody anticipated that it would be down as far as it is. 
  
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said the next question is the Hold Harmless that takes effect on July 
1st, 2015, so it is not reflected in this.  He wanted to make sure everyone understands when that 
will start to hurt us.  City Manager Stahle said you plan for it.  We have to take into account that 
lack of resources available to you when proposing the budget.  It is time right now to start thinking 
about it.   
 
Ms. Nichols continued with property tax.  DFA requires us to follow a formula whereby we take 
the current tax values that have been certified; the most recent are 2013.  Basically, it will be the 
same as last year and we have to use that.  The new property tax values will not be out until 
September so we cannot adjust property tax until after that point.  We used a three year average 
for franchise fees, licenses and permits were projected by the department, grants were based on 
what has been appropriated and what has been appropriated consistently in the past, charges for 
services were projected by departments, miscellaneous was projected on a three year average 
and investment income was current average earning rates.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin joined the meeting at 3:35 p.m. 
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 39 
 

City Manager Stahle mentioned when you are talking about your budget these assumptions are 
critical, whether you are talking revenue assumptions or expenditure assumptions.  If you make 
one adjustment to that top assumption, it has material effect on this budget and for years to 
come.  
We are going to be talking about a five year projection and it’s going to be based on some very 
conservative assumptions.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin made an announcement that the Tiger High School Boys Team won 
District as well as the Individual Boy and Individual Girl competitions. 

 
Commissioner Straface asked if City Manager Stahle considered all these conservative and City 
Manager Stahle told him some he does not, but for the most part they are fairly conservative.  He 
had asked the ladies in finance to look back further to give him a better basis; five years back.  
 
Commissioner Straface asked if you consider investment income incurred as conservative?  City 
Manager Stahle said there is not that much money in it, so he doesn’t get too excited. 
 
Ms. Nichols said another reason is because we always plan and want to move forward with our 
projects.  The departments work hard to get those projects completed, but we end up holding on 
to money a little longer than we think.   
 
City Manager Stahle said the reality is you don’t earn much money in your investments, period.   
Earnings on investments are not what they once were. 
 
Commissioner Straface and the city manager discussed bond monies and how it is different with 
a municipality as compared to a school district. 
  
Revenues 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said these are broken down into categories. The 
revenues are projected at $50.8 million; $2.3 million less than the current year.  The major 
difference for this is due to bond and loan proceeds whereby we received the loan of $1.9 million 
in FY14 for the RO project.  For FY15 we have not included a projection for bonds or loans.  We 
realize we will have the two GO bonds from the election, however, we are still working on the 
details of those and will have them included in the final budget in July.  The taxes include gross 
receipts tax and property taxes and they are both slightly above FY14.  We assumed again the 
.73% increase on GRT which is based on the five year actual trend the city has experienced. 
Property tax is projected based on calculations prescribed by DFA whereby the most current 
available property values are used which now is 2013.  2014 won’t be available until around 
September therefore property tax remains the same as projected in FY14.  Miscellaneous 
revenue consists of refunds, collections, credit card fees, insurance credits and administrative 
fees.  It also includes charge backs for the use of internal services from PHA and landfill.  The 
majority of the $319,000 decrease in relation to reimbursement is related to the reimbursement 
received from Premier Pellets and from the economic development incentive contract.  The other 
half of the difference is due to the recalculations of internal services.  Grants is another area with 
a sizable decrease of $506,000 whereby the city is receiving 6% less in grants at this point of 
projection.  Grants are pursued all year and when one is approved, the budget will be adjusted 
accordingly.  Investment interests are up 21% primarily due to holding more money on projects.  
We’ve held more money than we thought we would be able to earn on that investment on FY14, 
so we’ve already surpassed our original budget estimate on that.  We think we’ve made it 
conservative even though it is 21% higher.  Overall, revenues combined are 4% less than the 
previous year.   
 
Next, Ms. Nichols showed by Category.  She noted GRTs are the biggest piece of the pie.  The 
GRTs at $12 million are our imposed taxes and along with the States share it represents 38.7% 
of the total revenue for all funds combined.  User fees which include recreation fees and 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 39 
 

enterprise fees such as water, sewer and sold waste fees represent the second largest portion of 
the city’s revenues – 30.5% or $15.5 million.   
 
She went on to explain the trend of the revenue comparison for all funds showing how it dips, 
rises and dips again for FY15.  This is all combined revenue and includes everything; bonds, 
loans and grants.  The next slide showed where she took the bonds and loans out.  In FY12-13 it 
increased 3.4% and went down 1.4% in FY14 due to your downturn in GRTs.  Total overall, all 
funds together in revenue, we are only projecting only a .4% increase for FY14.   
  
She next showed the major revenues – grants, user fees and gross receipts taxes.  They are 
pretty close together.  She split the user fees into two slides and will show the larger user fees in 
a separate slide.  This slide includes annual user fees under one million; community services is 
the largest fee source with FY15 estimated at $400,000 and  is 3% greater than FY14.  PHA is 
estimated at $353,575 for FY15 and is 2% lower that FY14; Airport and Senior Center are both 
within 1%; Miscellaneous User fees throughout other funds are 3% higher.  The user fees that 
collect over one million include water/sewer at $9.4 million for FY15 and are 1.78% under FY14.  
We will go over the water/sewer revenue in more detail when we do the rate analysis tomorrow.  
Solid Waste user fees are projected at $1.988 for FY15 and are 2% under FY14 projections.  The 
Golf Course was projected at $1,265,575 and is almost 1% under FY14. 
 
Ms. Nichols said the Grant Revenue total for FY15 is $7.6 million and is $505,000 below the 
current fiscal year.  Grants in FY15 include the legislative funds for police cars, the RP project at 
$4 million, $100,000 for the public restrooms and $300,000 for the storage pond at the golf 
course.  Prior grants that we don’t have projected for current year include airport FAA grants, 
state highway grants, state reclaimed water grants, a LEDA grant, Washington Ave. grant and a 
state grant for regional waste water.  We will get more grants and when we do we’ll put them in 
the budget.  The finance department had a rule that they don’t put a grant in the budget until they 
actually get the grant.  We are changing that and will put the grants in that we know we are going 
to get, especially those that have a match.   
   
Steve Boyle, Accounting Manager presented GRT and Hold Harmless.  He showed we are down 
$737,000, 4.6% for the first 10 months compared to last year.  He went back a few years and 
showed how in 2009 we started at $18.6 million; our best year was 2011 with over $20 million.  
The reason for the 2014 original and 2014 re-projection is when we did our budget we thought we 
would stay flat, but we have had the downturn.  When we re-projected we came up with $19.2 
million for 2014 and in 2015 it went up .73% as the city manager had indicated.   Mr. Boyle gave 
some Hold Harmless information.  First of all the maximum that can be enacted is 3/8 of 1%; we 
don’t have to wait, we can do it whenever we want and we can do it in increments.  The Hold 
Harmless will hit July 1, 2015, so it will impact us in FY16.  The total loss in revenue for food and 
medical at this point is $2.7 million over the next 15 years, that’s what we will lose.    
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if that number was indexed for inflation at this point and 
Accounting Manager Boyle said it was the .073. He would show a chart of this later in the 
presentation. There wasn’t any new legislation in 2014 and he had verified this with NMML.  They 
had three bills introduced but not acted on.  The tax is very similar to any of our GRT enactments; 
you can enact in July or January and do this two or three months before then.  If we enact the 
1/8% tax in January, it will end up $367,415 for half a year, so there will not be a Hold Harmless 
affect from January to June 2015, and that would be money in the bank.  As we saw from a 
previous slide, we are already down $700 something from last year, and that would be half of that 
loss.  He pointed out the amount we would lose if we waited until July 1, 2015 – June 2016.  If we 
enact the tax July 1st at 1/8 we will get $738,990 of additional monies and will be $574,932 
ahead. 2021-2030 it jumps from 6% - 7% of what we will lose each year, so we will lose $191,401 
each year beginning in 2021.  Next he showed a graph showing the GRT with a .073% growth 
rate.  We will lose 6% ($164,058) the first year.  He showed if there wasn’t a Hold Harmless affect 
how the amount would increase, but with the Hold Harmless affect it decreases.  He showed how 
much we lose each year and then showed the same statistics for 2021-2030. We would be using 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 39 
 

$191,000 a year now and grow from a $1 million to a $3 million loss by FY2030.  Accounting 
Manager Boyle showed what would happen in 2014-2020 if we enact 1/8th as of January 1, 2015 
and then if enacted on July 1, 2016. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if these numbers were in line with the DFA numbers; those put 
out as a result of the Hold Harmless being taken away.  Mr. Boyle said he had used the most 
recent information he could find and it is where we have $2.7 million in medical; it could change a 
little bit. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if the .073 he uses is what he expects the inflation index to be. 
 Accounting Manager Boyle said that is being very conservative. 
 
City Manager Stahle said the .07 is not tied to inflation; it is based on what we have experienced 
in the last five years in the way of average increase for fiscal year.  That is dangerous because if 
you expect a worse downturn, meaning we aren’t going to get even what we got last month, then 
we need to adjust our numbers downward as well.  We’ve estimated a .73 whatever it is increase 
in GRT from the current fiscal. 
 
Mayor Galea appreciated that they show different alternatives if enacted.   Accounting Manager 
Boyle said he only used the 1/8th because we can multiply it by 2 or 3.  If you went to 2/8th or 3/8th 
we wouldn’t need all that money, but it would certainly help. 
 
City Manager Stahle said we can always talk about other options you have when talking about 
revenue streams, but as you have already seen, that’s where the lion’s share of your revenues 
come from.  If you are going to have any significant impact, it will likely be there. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said Alamogordo was one of a handful of cities that at the end of the 
2030 Hold Harmless phase-out, we were not able to come completely whole with the 3/8th tax.  
He said he didn’t see that on the charts.  Accounting Manager Boyle said since we don’t know 
where GRT futures will go, these take the $2.7 million we know about today and take the 1/8th on 
there.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he was talking about Taxation and Revenue numbers.  Ms. 
Nichols questioned him on this.  He said we are one of three or four cities in New Mexico who do 
not get completely whole by enacting all 3/8th.  Accounting Manager Boyle said we know we are 
going to lose $2.7 million with Hold Harmless.  If we enact 3/8th, we are going to get $700,000 X 3 
all at once in one year.  He didn’t understand where they got that.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler 
said it’s kind of what the county did. 
 
Mayor Galea said the projection with the DFA was as if we had imposed the 1/8th as needed 
instead of 3/8th up front, as Las Cruces had done.  At the end of the 15 year phase out, there 
won’t be a way to make us whole if we phase it out over time.  There will be a difference of 
$400,000 less in revenue.   
 
City Manager Stahle said in fifteen years it will be easier to contend with a $400,000 reduction in 
revenues versus a $2 point anything reduction in revenues.  Mayor Galea said we do have to 
think fifteen years down the road and City Manager Stahle said that is our chore.  He pointed out 
they had lots of other revenue options to play with, but you need to talk about your expenditures 
and we are going to spend a lot of time on the expenditure side.   

  
Expenditures  
Ms. Nichols told the commission the expenditure assumptions we used in developing our 
expenditures were the city manager’s instructions to departments.  The city manager asked the 
departments to re-project their current years, compare year-to-date and actuals from prior years, 
and adjust accordingly.  Capital was frozen and approved on an as-needed basis due to the GRT 
revenue shortfall in the current year.  Projections for FY15 should be relatively flat as to FY14 and 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 8 OF 39 
 

capital is based on needs and priorities.  Expenditures for all funds across the board are: total 
Salaries and Benefits are 1.6% above FY14 - from $19.1 million to $19.4 million – a difference of 
$308,443.  This is primarily due to the Health Insurance increase of 10% and the Affordable 
Health Care Act (AHCA) that takes effect on Jan. 1, 2015.  We put a total of $825,000 in the 
budget for that and only had to cover half the year for FY15.  The HR Manager will go over that in 
more detail after the expenditures.  Supplies decreased by $104,000; Maintenance increased by 
$172,000 or 11.8%; Utilities have a 44% increase of $704,000 and she meant to look up how 
much each utility went up  (she will bring that to them tomorrow); Other Services 
decreased by $1.8 million; Insurance decreased by $104,574 or 8.5%; Capital, and we don’t have 
as many major projects scheduled in FY15 as we did in the current FY, has decreased by nearly 
61% or $21.3 million.  She remarked she needed them to understand that is what they see right 
now which is the projected for FY14.  When we projected FY14, all the larger capital 
improvement projects had been estimated at 100%.  We already know some of those are not 
going to be done by June 30th, so they will carry over.  When you see the final budget number 
come to you, whatever is left over of the $35 million will add to the $13.7 million for the next year. 
 We will carry those over until those projects are completed.  It is important to understand you 
have committed that money for those projects.  The reason that is important is we will be talking 
about the reserve fund balances and the policy we will recommend to you, so we do end up 
carrying a lot of the capital projects over until completed.  Debt Service had an increase of 
$34,000.   
  
Commissioner Straface asked if the 44% increase in utilities was normal and if not, what causes 
it. City Manager Stahle agreed and had asked the same question.  He thought some of it has to 
do with the Waste Water and Water Treatment facilities. 
 
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said it should have gone down since we’ve put 2.5 megawatts of solar 
on there in the last year.  City Manager Stahle said they may not have taken that into account, so 
let’s talk about that.   
 
Public Works Director Cesar said we didn’t have too much of a winter so the surface flows are 
down and they saw a decrease.  He said he could get them the exact number.  We did increase 
the electrical usage of wells by approximately $200,000.  He will get them the exact numbers.  A 
good portion of that is from the water side. 
 
City Manager Stahle said you can see from the columns that one is projected and one is 
proposed budget.  One is based on eight months of actual expenses and we get much more 
precise on estimating what the end result would be in a 12 month period.  The FY15 is the exact 
opposite; we are estimating a full 12 months of expenses.  You will always see in fund accounting 
a projection less than the actual budget.   

 
Ms. Nichols went on to say in this chart you see the comparison between FY14 in darker red and 
FY15 in the blue color.  She showed that Code Enforcement is less in FY15 and all of these are 
basically less in FY15.  She just noticed an error in Series 1 and Series 2; Series Red is the FY15 
and Series One is Blue, FY14.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked how she accounted for the increases in the proposed legal, city 
manager, and planning and zoning.   It was discussed and then he withdrew his question.  Ms. 
Nichols apologized because this slide belongs in General Fund and not Overall Expenditures.  
Commissioner Straface asked if the red was 2014.  She told him FY14 was $18,000 and FY15 is 
$4,786, so the red is FY15 and the blue FY14.  It was decided to re-visit this one. 

 
       

B. Capital-Capital Equipment Replacement and other Equipment Overview 
Budget Analyst Kathy Gilsdorf stated this shows all of the capital which is $13.7 million.  This 
shows how it breaks out between Street capital, water and sewer lines, motor vehicles, contract 
engineering which is attached to different projects, infrastructure/construction, ICIP basically for 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 9 OF 39 
 

15 is some of the water projects that didn’t fit within some of the other lines, recreation, building 
improvements, Desal plant, capital equipment replacement, flood control, hardware and software 
and cell development with the landfill.  This breaks out the whole $13.7 million.  The next slide 
showed how the pieces break out and biggest majority is the Desal plant. The other chart breaks 
it all out into pie charts.  She showed the approved capital basically by category primarily your 
CER which are your vehicles and equipment and your proposed hardware and software.  The 
vehicles are primarily $300,000 for Fire, a contingency they will get every year. Police got around 
$300,000 which also includes the $200,000 legislative grant they received for their vehicles.  The 
city put in the additional to equal $300,000. Some of the other areas got some vehicles, but it is 
much smaller.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked about the PD vehicles.  Now they are asking for five Explorers 
and two Taurus’s; is that in addition to the nine we got from the state?  City Manager Stahle said 
his position has been for the two major departments, PD and FD that go through vehicles in an 
extraordinary fashion, he recommended you assume $300,000 each year for capital equipment 
replacement.  In FY15, the state has authorized a certain percentage of dollars for equipment 
replacement in the PD only.  As far as which vehicles it will be, he didn’t want them to bog down 
in that.  We do have an explanation of the type of vehicle and it is for the ones readily available 
and how far $300,000 will go.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked if the $300,000 was what the state is putting in or us.  City 
Manager Stahle said it is us and the state together.  $300,000 is the total amount for next year for 
PD equipment replacement.  Commissioner Hernandez said since we are going to the newer 
vehicles from the Crown Vics, does it include the equipment for the vehicles, and the city 
manager said yes.  Commissioner Straface asked how much the state contributes and was told 
$200,000.  Commissioner Hernandez said we will have to put $100,000 in and was told yes. 
 
City Manager Stahle said he takes a philosophy that when it comes to the equipment, we have to 
be committed to that.  Over time it all needs to be replaced, so the concept of having an 
equipment replacement program in place means if you plug in $300,000 a year it becomes a 
natural replacement of the tired iron, so to speak.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked if the vehicles would be delivered ready to roll or if they would 
sit in the city yard for months waiting for equipment to be installed.  City Manager Stahle said he 
would hope they would be delivered and be equipped immediately, but he couldn’t answer that. 
Commissioner Hernandez said the last time the departments were busy and the vehicles sat  
there for a long time.  If it is sitting in the yard we obviously don’t need it and can use that money 
for something else.  City Manager Stahle agreed and said it should be done quickly.  The reality 
on particularly fire trucks is that it is a long lead item and those things take forever. They are built 
once they are ordered and it used to be the same with vehicles.  Commissioner Hernandez 
reiterated he didn’t want them sitting out there for six months.  City Manager Stahle said that was 
duly noted, and he was talking about a replacement program that had to be routine.  We need to 
develop a program in which you have planned for equipment obsolescence.  
 
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said DPS had a capital replacement budget as well, and how does this 
compare to that when you put PD and FD together.  His concern was if we would have to pay the 
entire amount next year without state support.  City Manager Stahle said he hoped not.  Mayor 
Pro-tem Rentschler said part of splitting DPS into two entities was to remain budget neutral.  Is 
this a budget neutral situation? City Manager Stahle said no; he did not believe we are capable of 
handling stand alone departments and staying at the budget provided in years past.  He was 
trying to look ahead, man them, equip them and make them function like stand alone professional 
organizations.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler asked if he understood that was the deal, and the city 
manager said he did as of that time.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said we would not have passed 
that if it hadn’t been in there, so we need to know.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 10 OF 39 
 

City Manager Stahle said before you throw rocks let me show you the differences; we want you to 
see them and be comfortable.  It isn’t realistic to continue to think that forever and a day it will be 
budget neutral.  Keep in mind, it is not a gigantic increase in either one, but as things settle down 
and we know who is where, what equipment is necessary and what buildings need to be 
replaced, you are going to face the reality that both are expensive operations.  It is up to you 
whether you will have the money or not.  It has not been a situation where we have pored a 
bunch more money into those two operations.  These capital items are the biggest adjustment for 
Fire that he could perceive putting in front of you.  Keep in mind we are trying to use volunteers to 
operate and if you switch from volunteer to professional the number will really go up.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked if we have established criteria for vehicle replacement, and City 
Manager Stahle said he had in his own mind.  In a tough financial condition the 80,000 miles/5 
years may have to be stretched to 100,000/6 years.  Now, he is saying to plug some money in to 
get it in our heads we need to be looking ahead for that capital equipment.  We’ll deal with the 
policy on how quickly to replace at a later date.  One example, in Arizona the interstate system 
came right through their community.  You are doing 80 MPH and if you want to do a pursuit at 
100 MPH you need a vehicle that can do that.  It also depends on your situation; if there isn’t a lot 
of crime you might not need to replace equipment as often.   
 
Commissioner Straface said some depends on your vehicle maintenance and City Manager 
Stahle agreed.  He said modern equipment lasts longer than equipment used to; your 
environment matters a lot. 
 
Mayor Galea knows we can get more into detail when we get to that department budget and 
wanted to continue with the presentation. 
    
Ms. Nichols pointed out the Miscellaneous tab in the back of the book.  There is a yellow piece of 
paper separating some of the reports.  Right behind that yellow piece of paper is a list of all 
capital equipment we put in the budget by department.     
 
Mrs. Gilsdorf continued with the capital equipment replacement program by director.  
Administration didn’t get anything new.  Last year they got the two pool vehicles that could be 
used by anybody.  Community Service is getting less.  They are getting within the CER a riding 
mower, Senior Center got a 250 bus, and Solid Waste got an affordable building.  Engineering 
hasn’t gotten anything and their vehicles are fairly new; Finance includes MIS and last year they 
got a van; FD is way up because of that $300,000; Municipal Court didn’t get anything new; PD is 
a little less than last year and the FY15 in the red represents the $300,000; Public Works really 
went up because of the radio voting system that is primarily for the PD and cost $440,000.  It is in 
the Facility Maintenance budget which is under Public Works.  
  
City Manager Stahle explained the radio voting system.  The radio system for Emergency 
Services has some challenges reaching the whole city so there is a type of equipment we have 
been told will solve that problem.  Once it is in place it will do like your cell phone does and go to 
the tower that is most available to handle the traffic.  It decides which tower to use in order to get 
the communication through.  We will look at it very carefully to make sure it is worth it.  It is for 
both Police and Fire.  
 
Ms. Nichols said it is budgeted for $440,000.  The capital equipment replacement was budgeted 
at $100,000. 
 
Mrs. Gilsdorf showed the major capital in the budget and it showed the Desal Plant at $4 million; 
Street programs at $1.2 million; Flood Control for Corp of Engineers at $1.5 million; Radio Voting 
System (RVS) at $440,000; PSAP at $425,000 and is in the Public Safety/Police Dept. budget.   
 
City Manager Stahle explained the $425,000 was only an estimate of what we believed the 
consolidated PSAP would cost us.  Once we are co-located then we start qualifying for the 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 11 OF 39 
 

money we each put in to the state fund to replace equipment.  We’re also pursuing whether they 
can help us defray some of that expense.  We are facing a bigger change than the County and 
the reason is we are talking about moving our operations to the County building.  Most 
importantly, that number includes an estimate for the Computer Assisted Dispatch operation 
(CAD) software and we would share the expense with the County and other service agencies in 
the PSAP.  Whether we spend that or not depends on a contract we would all be comfortable 
with. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked if under the Street program there was an identified list of needs 
and priorities.  City Manager Stahle said there is and we will talk about that more.  Now there are 
some major projects that should wrap up by the end of the calendar year and regular 
maintenance such as reconstruction and maintenance of existing streets.  If we used our entire 
budget we still would not be able to meet all our needs.  Commissioner Straface said he would 
like that list and City Manager Stahle said we will give you a map that illustrates where they are.   
 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said we have also planned to discuss the street 
maintenance program and some other capital monies during another capital improvement section 
on Wednesday. 

 
Commissioner Hernandez asked about the RVS and whether it was through a vendor and the city 
manager said it was.  Commissioner Hernandez asked if they were guaranteeing it would work 
and the city manager said we won’t do it unless they guarantee it.  We will still look at all options. 
 He was tired of hearing about the dead areas and this will try to fix that.  Commissioner 
Hernandez said it is a lot of money to spend if it doesn’t work. 

  
Ms. Nichols said we will turn this over to Katie but she first wanted to show them a picture of 
personnel services showing the salaries, overtime, standby, allowances and benefits.  In FY15 
the total wages are $13,262,313 as opposed to FY14 of $13,308,849.  The salaries went down by 
about $46,000 basically due to changes in positions.  The benefits increase by about $354,000 
and went from $5.8 million to $6.1 million.  Health insurance increased by 10% and we did put in 
some money for the AHCA. 
 
Commissioner Baldwin asked what percentage of the total budget was for personnel services and 
was told it was 36%.  City Manager Stahle said it is important to understand that is total budget. 
Commissioner Baldwin said well done.  
 
City Manager Stahle said what we just showed on the prior slide was the expense to the city only. 
When there are benefit packages there is some buy-in from staff as well.   

     
C. Human Resource Summary -  By H.R. 

Katie Josselyn, Human Resource Manager explained the slide showing the number of employees 
and saying this proposal maintains the same levels we have in the current year, FY14.  There are 
343 regular full-time/ 48 regular part-time/ 42 seasonal/ 433 total actual positions/ 377 full-time 
equivalents. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked her if under the AHCA we are talking about the need to identify 
employees who work more than 30 hrs. per week.  She told him yes and is based on the current 
policy which defines full-time as 40 hrs. per week.  Regular part-time is anything less than that 
and is budgeted all year.  Commissioner Straface asked if it could be less than 30 hrs. per week 
and she told him yes.   

 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn pointed out again there are no staff level changes in FY15.  
She next showed personnel budget factors that affect budget.  She showed the COLA increase to 
AFSCME and that there are no COLA increases for APSOA since their contract is still in 
negotiations.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 12 OF 39 
 

City Manager Stahle said that is an important point.  He told the commission we haven’t settled 
so had they done as AFSCME, the 1.5% would have come out of our budget and also would 
have meant the staff within that union would have seen a slight adjustment in their pay.  Since 
that did not happen, we are not legally able to provide that 1.5%.  That point has been a noted 
piece of the conversation in negotiations. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked about the 1.5% on July 1st and if it was the current fiscal year.  City 
Manager Stahle confirmed.   Commissioner Straface then asked if there was a guaranteed 
contract for next fiscal year and City Manager Stahle said they are still negotiating.  He went on to 
say first of all, AFSCME is in negotiations for next year’s union contract; APSOA is still in 
negotiations for the current year’s contract.  Commissioner Straface asked if part of the process 
was arbitration and City Manager Stahle said it may get to that.  Commissioner Straface asked if 
it was binding arbitration and City Manager Stahle said the commission still has final authority on 
all union contracts.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn continued by saying this chart shows the current fiscal year 
and the next chart would show FY15.  She reminded the commission that for FY14 they had 
approved a 1.5% increase for January, 2015, but it was contingent on GRT revenues so it was 
not implemented. 
 
City Manager Stahle interjected that FY14 was correct, and if we had seen the projected 
increases in GRT then we would have been able to get that.  A condition of your authorization for 
the 1.5% increase in January of this year was that our gross receipts were on pace with what we 
had estimated they would be.  Since they were not, that was not authorized. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn explained the PERA employee contribution that was 
increased by 1.5%, the health insurance premium increase and vacancy savings in wages and 
benefits.  The next page showed the FY15 budget with no COLA increase, no wage increases, 
the 10% health insurance increase to both the employee and the city, the AFHA contingency fund 
for what we are proposing to do in order to handle this and the full family group insurance budget. 
She said over the years we have had about 20% of our employees pick up family and with the 
changes with the AHCA it is very hard to determine what we might be facing.  City Manager 
Stahle said you always assume the worst with expenditures. 
 
Commissioner Straface felt it was important for us to understand where those dollars are. 

 
Commissioner Sikes asked if the 10% health insurance increase would be passed on to 
employees and Human Resource Manager Josselyn confirmed.  City Manager Stahle said the 
$120,000 is just ours and is not passed on; we share that right now.  Commissioner Straface said 
everyone gets 10% now and Human Resource Manager Josselyn confirmed.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the workmen’s comp. mod rate would be increasing a 
little and she said we pay for what has happened over the last four years.  The mod rate has to 
do with how many claims and the cost of the claims over the last four years.  2011 was our worst 
year so in FY16 we will drop that year and thus get that down significantly.  In her own 
department’s budget, they went down 75% compared to 2011, and 2012 and in 2013 we went 
down about 40%. It is reducing and has a better outlook for future years.  On July 1, 2014, PERA 
will increase the employers share by .40%, and if we meet our safety training we will receive an 
$80l,647 dividend credit.  
 
Commissioner Straface asked about the 15% health insurance increase this year.  Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said we didn’t have an increase for three years before that and 
they’ve really hit us this year.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn showed the percentage based deductions/benefits that are 
deducted from employee checks.  She noted the FD and PD employees do not pay social 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 13 OF 39 
 

security taxes.  The regular employees have total deductions of 14.7%, Police have a total of 
8.5% and Fire employees have 8.4%.  The percentage benefits the city pays for are totals of 
32.24% for Regular, 42.86% for Police and 46.44% for Fire. 

  
Commissioner Straface said for Police under employer benefits, we pay 42% of every person’s 
salary and Human Resource Manager Josselyn said yes.  City Manager Stahle said it is an 
amazing fact most people don’t understand, and Commissioner Straface remarked that was 
without social security, and the city manager confirmed in Police and Fire.  He felt one thing that 
would help staff take a big picture look at their salaries would be to show them on a paycheck 
what the city is paying in addition to the actual dollars they get to take.  He said he has done this 
in another jurisdiction and it was an eye-opener.  People don’t appreciate how much every 
position costs us, and this doesn’t even talk about the building, vehicles, computers, cell phones, 
etc.  This is just the cost of salaries and benefits.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn stated this 
doesn’t have health insurance in it; they are simply percentage based benefits.  She told 
Commissioner Straface that in the 1950’s they signed a section 218 agreement that exempted 
them from social security but they have the inflated contribution to PERA.  Commissioner 
Straface asked if the amount of health the city pays was added on to the 42%, and Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said yes.  On the employee side it is also added on to their 
deductions.  Commissioner Straface said the cost of an employee to the city for benefits is more 
than 50% and City Manager Stahle said that was only for Police and Fire.  Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn said the regular is 32.24%.   

 
City Manager Stahle said the general fund salaries represent 72% of the budget; the total general 
fund, and Commissioner Straface said that is because you are labor intensive.  City Manager 
Stahle confirmed that.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said one of her objectives is to give a benefit breakdown to 
all employees showing the total cost of their position.  Commissioner Straface said the school 
district paychecks show both the employee and school district numbers.   

 
Commissioner Hernandez said we get one about every three years that shows what your salary, 
benefits, training, cell phones, meals, etc. are, because it is part of your salary and the City 
Manager Stahle agreed.  So, a $30,000 employee is making $70,000.   Mayor Pro-tem 
Rentschler asked him if that was every three years and Commissioner Hernandez confirmed.  
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler agreed that it is an eye-opening.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn has worked here 23 years and doesn’t remember getting 
one. City Manager Stahle said perhaps we should cure that.  He went on to say it is a rude 
awakening to most staff, and they do need to understand it since there is a budget in front of you 
that doesn’t give them any increases this year.  In fact, some will be a cost to them.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said what makes the difference to a staff member in their take-home is 
more important that 20 years down the road, because that is what they have to contend with 
today.  That’s why that 1.5% we gave last time was very important, but it didn’t mean anything 
since we are raising it more.  City Manager Stahle said it was already eaten up by the AHCA. 
Commissioner Hernandez said we need to really watch turnover and what it is costing you.  You 
have to be careful with all of it.  
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn showed the breakdown with the 10% increase for this year, 
and then broken down by the four different policies we offer.  The current split on that is the 
employee paying 40% and the City paying 60%, with the exception of the basic life policy of 
which the city pays 100%.  
  
Commissioner Straface asked about some of the costs and if an employee and spouse who work 
together get any benefit on that.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn said both cannot; there 
can’t be a duplication of coverage.  Each employee can pick up a basic life policy as an employee 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 14 OF 39 
 

and the city pays 100% of that.   City Manager Stahle said if you abide by the recommendations it 
will get worse for both sides.   
 
City Manager Stahle said it is critically important to understand because of the health insurance 
increases and because of the AHCA, we are going to have to make some important decisions 
that will affect every single employee.  He asked for Human Resource Manager Josselyn to be 
meticulous in going over the next page concerning AHCA.    

 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn explained the FY15 insurance budget for employees with a 
total of $1,596,843 and then broke it down for all the different policies.  The total group insurance 
budget is $1,737,000 and the approximate cost of the 10% health increase is $120,000.  She 
showed other totals 
 
Commissioner Sikes asked if we developed any models where we eliminate health insurance 
altogether, and let people pick up one of the policies offered by the state and then possibly 
increase salaries to cover this.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn said they had looked at a lot 
of different possibilities and would go through them. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn showed the considerations for the AHCA.  We are required 
to comply effective January 1, 2015; employees were required to comply effective March 2014. 
We are required to provide affordable employee only health insurance to full time staff; that will 
change our definition of full-time.  30 hours or more per week and more than 120 days per year 
will become full-time staff.  We’ll have to look at that for some of our seasonals.  We have to 
establish a measurement and stability period and she recommended a 12 month period.  That 
means we will be required to do tests and measure how many hours employees are working.  If 
we discover a position is working more hours than originally set up for, or if they have gone over 
that period, then the stability period would be the same length of time we would be required to 
cover that employee and offer them insurance if they elect to pick it up for that next year.  Every 
year you start over and it is measured on a month by month basis.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked her if there would be a fine if you don’t and she told him there is a 
significant fine. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the employee premium cost, the amount coming out of 
the employees check, cannot exceed 9.5% of the employee’s gross household income.  Our 
challenge is how you measure the household income because by law we cannot ask for that 
information.  We have to go with the worst case scenario and look at what that employee makes 
working for us.  There are some back door ways to look at that such as if an employee comes in 
to look at the exchange and you see you are not meeting the level where they can get insurance, 
then on a one-on-one basis we can see what an employee’s household income is.  For 
measuring the group as a whole, she said it isn’t something we can do.  We use the employee’s 
wages with the city to measure that.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we don’t look at any other way to measure, like asking for a 
1040 Form to figure it out.  He asked if the law allows for any of that and she said no; this new act 
is putting employers in a precarious situation.   
 
Commissioner Sikes asked if the IRS would test it and Human Resource Manager Josselyn said 
through attrition and as things are practiced and worked with over the next several years, it will 
change.  Commissioner Sikes asked if you have to be married.  Human Resource Manager 
Josselyn said this looks at the employee only coverage.  City Manager Stahle said it is based on 
the household and if your household includes non-relatives, it will be an interesting point, and a 
problem. 

 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said we have to make it available for dependents.  We don’t 
have to meet that test for dependents, but we do have to make it available to the employee to 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 15 OF 39 
 

pick up.  Hours and employment duration of 12 seasonal positions will be changed in FY16 to 
eliminate the eligibility.  She said we have 42 seasonal positions and when she put all of those to 
these tests, 12 met the full-time staff requirements and require us to offer insurance to them.  
They worked about 40 hours for 30 weeks, so worked over that 120 day period.  You can have a 
position working a 40 hour week; they just can’t work past the 120 day threshold.   
 
Mayor Galea said how would it work if it exceeds 9.5% of their gross pay?  Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn said we looked at 18 different options and there are two different tests.  First 
they have to meet the 30 or more hours per week/120 days per year, and then you have to meet 
the 9.5% test.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said what they are looking at doing for those 12 seasonal 
employees is turning them into 24 seasonal positions.  They could only work for the 15 weeks 
instead of 30.  City Manager Stahle said that causes work and frustrates potential seasonal 
employees because they have to get more jobs or not have the income.  It affects our community, 
without a doubt.   Human Resource Manager Josselyn said it also affects management because 
you can’t have them work for 15 weeks, release them for a week and then bring them back.  You 
have to use the entire measurement period to get those 120 days.   

 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn showed her facts that of 343 positions eligible for insurance 
under our current definition of full-time.  Positions eligible under AHCA are 351 and that adds the 
eight part-time positions that meet that test; that does not include the 12 seasonals.  There are 86 
employees not meeting the 9.5% test, so that means the cost for employee only insurance 
coming out of their checks is more than 9.5% of their salary.  The current participants in our 
group health insurance are 213, which is just the employee.  What she did was look back at how 
many employees signed up for insurance in January because employees had the requirement in 
2014.  She had between 5%-6% sign up for insurance and she anticipates more than that.  On 
July 1, 2014, with the 10% increase of the employee only cost to the employee is $2,277 per 
year.  The other thing she did was look at what the lowest paid employee made and what 
percentage we would have to pay of that policy to meet that 9.5% test.  We would have to pay at 
least 79.43% of that insurance policy to meet that test.  Presently, we are paying 60%.   
 
Next she explained they looked at the different ways we could try to handle this.  One way was to 
change the contribution amount the city pays for health insurance.  The state uses a sliding scale 
based on salary, but their cut-off point is $50,000 per year.  That is not an option for our group.  If 
you bring that down to about 25, then you will see in option 15 for a full year period if we looked 
at the whole 351 picking up insurance, it would cost us $642,000 more per year.  We looked at 
changing only those who do not meet the test, and then you run into other factors such as 
internal equity.  We also looked at changing the pay of just those employees and that was option 
17 which costs $259,000.  That opens you up for future years and you’ll have to measure that 
every year. You’ll have some employees getting wage increases and not others which could 
cause a morale issue.  City Manager Stahle said it would be a big morale issues and it’s called 
salary compression.  An employee has been around a lot longer than a newby and yet they are 
getting paid the same.  There would be a ripple effect that is unpleasant for everyone. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked if she was recommending option 12 and she said yes.  Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said option 12 based on several things – the impact to the city and 
the employee, a reasonable estimate of participants, internal equity, administration of the plan 
and future plan compliance.  All these costs will vary with the actual enrollment level of what 
employees elect to do.  If you look across the chart at the very top, it shows where we are now.  
The city pays 60% of the employee only coverage or family coverage.  The cost of that is $1.5 
million and the impact to the employee for an employee only policy is $2,277 per year and for 
family coverage $6,705.  That is with the 10% 
 
Commissioner Straface asked if option 12 had the expenditures calculated, and Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn told him option 12 is what we use to place the contingency fund of 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 16 OF 39 
 

$125,000, because we are only doing it for half a year.  City Manager Stahle said yes, it is in the 
recommended budget for half a year, and $248,000 being on top of the $1.5 million. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said that the number enrolled of 248 is using the estimate 
she had suggested of 25% more of the eligible signing up.  We could have all 351 sign up; we 
just don’t know.  As far as administration, the easiest would be for us to pay 100% of the 
employee only, but she could see that running up enrollment when people may sign up as a 
secondary insurance.  We are looking at administration, the future plan, the future plan 
compliance and all those factors when we are suggesting option 12.  What option 12 does is that 
the city, beginning January 1st, would begin paying 85% of an employee only policy.  However, for 
dependents they would pay 35% of the difference for the dependents to be on the policy.   
   
Commissioner Straface said the easiest thing would be to pay the penalty or you hurt your 
employees.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn said she has found some private companies 
and corporations doing exactly that.  They are saying they won’t have insurance anymore and 
just pay the penalty.   Commissioner Straface said they will let the employees go through the 
exchange.  
 
City Manager Stahle said it goes back to what was said earlier – we’ll pay you what we have 
been and you get your own insurance.  There is a consequence to that; it’s take-home that 
matters so if you give them the amount you are otherwise paying for insurance, they might not 
buy some more and be uninsured.  That would be a consequence on your operations.  As you 
can see from this chart, option 12 seems to be the best we’ve got.   

 
Commissioner Sikes asked about the state insurance we provide to all employees and if we just 
take what they give us.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn said we looked at it last year and 
the numbers we got were significantly higher than what we are getting from the state.  We have 
to remember the state is a pool and there are other entities that are not pools.  When you have a 
bigger buying group it is kind of like buying it at Sam’s. 
 
Commissioner Sikes said all of the exchanges are pools, too.  Human Resource Manager 
Josselyn agreed and said we are a Large Employer with over 50 so we can’t just say we are 
going to let the employees go to the exchange.  We are required to offer the insurance or we get 
penalized.  For every one of our employees who goes to that exchange and gets a credit through 
the exchange, the city will be fined.  That is an annual penalty so they break it out.  If you have 
some employees who only do it for six months, then it would be a ratio of that year.  That is the 
worst case scenario. 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the City offers three types of health insurance currently.  Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said there are two different ones and the coverage is very similar; 
we don’t offer a low level coverage.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if there was an option and she said she had asked about that 
because the state had a health savings account policy, but they have dropped it since it didn’t 
meet the other criteria.  The insurance company has to pay at least 60% of the services rendered 
or that doesn’t meet the test for the AHCA.  
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said she was much more of an advocate to encourage 
healthy employee and wellness programs since that affects morale which affects workers comp 
claims which affects all the other things that go along with it.  These are the black and white 
numbers and there are so many other factors. 
 
Commissioner Sikes asked what input she receiving from city employees.  Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn said they hadn’t seen it.  Commissioner Sikes asked what  they were saying  
up until now.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 17 OF 39 
 

Commissioner Hernandez asked if our rates were based on usage or just what they are giving to 
us. Human Resource Manager Josselyn said it was based on usage.  We have a 1% load fee on 
top of the basic fee to the state because of high claims.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said one of the things they have done because they are health care is 
that most nurses who had a kid with a runny nose went right to the ER.  We implemented a 
program called ‘Swift MD’ where the hospital pays for it, but it is free to the employees.  When 
you have a cold or the flu, you call or email and a doctor calls you back within the hour.  They can 
even prescribe medication over the phone and this cuts back on usage quite a bit. Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said those kinds of programs and wellness programs are very 
beneficial in lowering claims.  Commissioner Hernandez said it helped us a lot. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said when you are in a big city it is different, but here in 
Alamogordo if you have a sick child, it is your only option and it is expensive.   

 
Commissioner Straface said that with ‘Swift MD’, like Commissioner Hernandez is talking about 
you have 24/7 access.  Commissioner Hernandez said it works really well and you just have to 
learn how to use it.   
 
City Manager Stahle asked Human Resource Manager Josselyn to explain the effects of option 
12 on staff.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn told them this page only shows the annual 
impact for an employee with employee only insurance and it will actually save $1,400 per year.  
For an employee who picks up family it will cost $1,300 more.  This is part of the reason they 
chose option 12.  She pointed out some of the other options with family.   
 
Commissioner Straface said if our employees pay $595 for families they will increase it by $100+, 
and Ms. Josselyn agreed. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the next screen breaks it down weekly and monthly.  It 
showed the amounts with a 10% health premium increase and the city paying 60%.  The dental 
insurance also comes out. The other chart showed amounts under the AHCA which showed the 
impacts to the employees for the first six months and for a whole year.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said dependent insurance would not be as affordable and Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn agreed.  She told them an employee may look at the exchange and 
it could be cheaper for them to pick up dependents.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if they go on the exchange for their insurance, is there a way to 
take them out as far as the city is concerned and not have the penalty.  She said that is what 
generates the penalty; if they go on there and get the credit and pick up insurance, we pay a 
penalty for every one of them.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler said we look at their annual rate, take 
the penalty out and that would be the increase in their salary.   
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said that in the January enrollment we had 103 employee 
only, 21 with employee plus child, 38 with employee plus spouse and 51 with full family.  That is 
roughly one fourth of all those who pick up insurance.  She continued to explain the options 
shown on the Power Point chart.  Mayor Galea asked about option 6 and the human resource 
manager explained.  
 
City Manager Stahle said this does not apply until January.  There will be a lot of interpretations, 
amendments and delays in enactment; we don’t know what is going to happen. We have to be 
responsible and deal with what we do know. 
 
Commissioner Sikes asked why it would matter if someone decided to go to the exchange 
instead of through the city.  She continued with the example of an employee opting out of city 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 18 OF 39 
 

insurance and going to the exchange to find something more affordable.  How would that impact 
us?  The employee is covered by the exchange and we still have the obligation to offer insurance. 
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn told her we must offer affordable insurance, so there are 
some whose salary would not meet the test.  86 times $3,000 equals $258,000.  If you are going 
to spend that, why not cover the employee.  

 
Commissioner Straface said you pay a penalty every time a person goes to the exchange, and 
what they don’t want you to do is go to the exchange so the employers pick up the cost.   
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we are required to offer families, as well.  Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn said we are required to offer it but it doesn’t have to meet the test.  You only 
have to meet all the tests for the employee. 

 
Commissioner Hernandez said if you don’t meet it for the family, it is all part of it because if they 
go shopping it will be cheaper for them to get insurance for the employee and family versus the 
employee and family separate.   

 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn didn’t think the exchange insurance was that great and she 
used an example.  Her 27 yr. old nephew got insurance so he wouldn’t get dinged on his income 
taxes.  He qualified for a credit so the insurance was $125.00 per month and he had a credit so 
he was only to pay $60.00, but the deductible is $5,000 per year.  It doesn’t make sense. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we were capable of looking at something different to help 
with the cost.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn wasn’t sure how it was being done because 
you have to cover at least 60% of all.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said it’s secondary and just to help reduce our usage. Human 
Resource Manager Josselyn said it is something we should look at – lowering the claims the 
employees and families have. 
 
Mayor Galea wondered if the Commission could look at option 6 or 13 to be less cost to the 
employee for family insurance.  It would give less incentive to shop on the exchange and we 
wouldn’t have to pay penalties. City Manager Stahle said option6 would be a lot more than this 
recommended.  We would have to figure out where we are going to get that. 

 
Mayor Galea asked if there can be something grandfathered in. 

 
Commissioner Hernandez asked if this needed to be decided by Thursday.  Ms. Nichols said no 
because is does not take effect until January 1, 2015.  You would like it in your final budget; we 
can keep the number we currently have in there now. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez recommended asking the employees for their opinion on this and 
maybe use a random number.       
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the bottom chair is going to be 9.5% and anyone leaving the City 
because of this would find the same at any job. 
 
Commissioner Straface said if we do option 13 as opposed to option 12 we would have to adjust 
our budget for an increase of $160,000, and the city manager agreed.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler 
said we have to plan for it.  Commissioner Straface said it will increase over time.    

 
City Manager Stahle said we have another issue and that is union negotiations because these 
are benefits and directly related to union negotiations, so it is important for us to get guidance 
from you.  The money simply isn’t there and you have to make some tough decisions with this 
being the toughest one of all. 
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 19 OF 39 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said anything about 9.5% is the City’s, and Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn said what she did is take the lowest pay in the city and what percentage it 
would take for the City to make that test.     
 
The meeting was recessed at 5:40 p.m. and reconvened at 5:57 p.m.   
 

      City Manager Stahle said we have to look ahead, at least five years out.  
 
 
D. 5-Year Outlook 

Accounting Manager Boyle explained the handout titled COA General Government Sources of 
Uses of Funds, Funds (11,32,63,65,98).  Those funds represent the General Fund.  The first 
page of the handout showed the 2014–2019 Forecasted Amounts, the second page showed the 
Assumptions, and the final page listed Sources and Uses of Funds for 2014-2019 Project 
Amounts.  The General Fund gets 52.5% of our total GRT enactments including the State share.  
These projections do not show any Hold-Harmless affects as far as enactments go.    
 
City Manager Stahle said a critical point is that in years past you have been deficit budgeting, but 
have not spent on a cash basis in a deficit manner.  Since you have spent essentially 85% of 
what was budgeted you have been able to not have a cash deficit.  We can’t keep doing this.   
 
Accounting Manager Boyle said the General Fund is Salary and Wage heavy - 72%.  
 
Commissioner Straface said he didn’t think you ever spend 100% of what is budgeted.  He would 
like to see the projected, the proposed, and then the audited numbers.  Turnover has always 
been absorbed and City Manager Stahle agreed.     

 
Commissioner Straface felt there was enough flexibility in Salaries and Benefits accounts so that 
no jobs would need to eliminated.   

 
City Manager Stahle said if you are not saving for the future in order to handle what you are 
projecting, then you have made a mistake.   
 
Mayor Galea spoke of a tax increase and City Manager Stahle said that was the Commission’s 
call.  
 

Recessed the meeting at 6:23 p.m. and will reconvene tomorrow at 3:00 p.m.  
 
 
TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2014 - 3:00 P.M. 
 

Mayor Galea reconvened the meeting at 3:00 p.m.  All were present except Commissioner 
Straface and Commissioner Baldwin. 

 
Other Director’s Present:  City Manager Stahle, City Attorney Thies, City Clerk Cantin, Contract 
Finance Operation Consultant Nichols, Assistant City Manager McNeile, Public Works Director 
Cesar, Police Chief Duncan, Fire Chief Ward, City Engineer Thomas, and Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn. 

 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols started with a breakdown of Utilities Expenses 
which was a handout (see handout in Power Point).  She pointed out the electricity line and 
asked for Public Works Director Cesar to explain.   

 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 20 OF 39 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said there was an Electricity increase of 69% which was astonishing, 
and City Manager Stahle reminded him those were projected.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler 
wondered what part of our electrical budget was for pumping. 

 
Public Works Director Cesar presented the Water & Waste Water Utility Expenses.  Mayor Pro-
Tem Rentschler asked him for a breakdown of what he believed these were producing and what 
we are paying for when he could. 

 
 Commissioner Baldwin joined the meeting at 3:16 p.m.  
 

Ms. Nichols moved on with the General Fund Overview.  It was comparing the total General Fund 
to other years and to FY15.  It is important to understand the budget is based on a cash level, 
and the fund balance is estimated to be $5,404,000.   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said you are saying we started with $5 million and used $3 million to 
balance it out of the last reserve, and we don’t have to do that again.  Ms. Nichols explained 
numerous points of these figures to the commission.   

 
City Manager Stahle said we budget at 100% and gave the example, if we project there will be a 
vacancy at the end of June, we will budget as if we will spend the maximum amount for that 
position.   

 
Mayor Galea said if we do not want to deficit spend we would have to find $3.1 million to cut in 
expenditures.  City Manager Stahle said no, that is budget deficit and not spending deficit.  You 
must realize you have your reserves.  He felt it was important to understand the 1/12th required by 
law.  We must modernize our Reserve policies.  We will get into this later. 

 
Ms. Nichols pointed out that the General Fund is your main General operating fund and accounts 
for all operations of the City that don’t have their own sub-balancing fund.  General Fund is 
basically the most non-restrictive funds you have.   

   
E. General Fund – Overview 

F1.  General Fund – Revenues 
Ms. Nichols said the General Fund includes Administration, Public Safety, Code Enforcement, 
Finance and Planning.  General Fund revenues are projected at $15.9 million, which is 2% 
higher. The handout showed a breakdown of FY12-FY15 and noted how flat the numbers were.   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked about GRT’s and thought there would be more than this 
amount. City Manager Stahle said this is a conservative estimate on purpose, and it is optimistic 
to say there will be an increase.  We don’t know the impact of the F-16 coming to town.   

 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols then explained the General Fund Expenditures 
page which is the last page of the handout.  She said the biggest difference of 13% is attributed 
to the 10% health insurance increase and the AHCA.  She said they could see all numbers 
related to the slides on page 24 in the budget book - General Fund Expenditures.  She will 
include the dollar difference. 

 
F2.  General Fund – Expenditures (Summary by Department) 
  Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols explained page 24 in the budget book. 
 
F3.  General Fund – Subsidized Operations 

Ms. Nichols explained the subsidized operations.  She said there is a separate fund, Fund 40, for 
airport improvements.    

 
City Manager Stahle remarked that two major sources of revenue for basic operations of the 
airport are the Fuel and Rental fees.   



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 21 OF 39 
 
 
F4.  General Fund – Capital 

Ms. Nichols referred to page M-7 under the Misc. Tab and said any number beginning with 011 
would be General Fund.  She said the question came up yesterday about the comparison of 
PD/FD from the re-organization/separating of the two.   

 
Steve Boyle stated it was said the split of the two departments would be a neutral position, but it 
wasn’t at all, and he pointed out the changes made.  The FY14 budget had a $1.7 million 
increase with PD $1.1 million and FD was $609,000.  He showed the history up until the split and 
the projection for 2015, and then a chart of actuals.  
City Manager Stahle said it is critical for you to understand that you now have a Fire Department 
that relies on fighting fires by the volunteers and firemen instead of Police Department.  It will 
take us a while to get enough trained volunteers in place to take the load off the police officers.  

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we are still allowing PD officers to train, and Fire Chief Ward 
told him the ones who were training prior to the separation are being allowed to continue that 
training.   Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler asked if we are training any new police officers and was told 
no.  City Manager Stahle said we are reserving expenses to those who actually use it. 

 
Mayor Galea asked if in the Five Year Projections it had been included to increase staff in the FD. 
City Manager Stahle said no.   He said we have to have a core of volunteers in the FD to assist 
paid staff and we are working toward that.  In reality, if you needed more firefighters, three per 
building, it is a lot so we are relying heavily on volunteers.  Someday you will need to have 
additional paid staff to help offset.  We are trying to keep this all as budget neutral as possible.   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler questioned the non-training of PD officers.  City Manager Stahle said 
the complications are whether they need to be paid extra during that training or if they will 
volunteer for that training.  Fire Chief Ward commented on training and volunteers and the fact 
there are minimum required hours of training per month and year. 

 
 Mayor Galea asked that we discuss this at a later date.   
 
SKIPPED THE FOLLOWING TWO ITEMS: 
 
Municipal Court (Fund 27)   
 
F5.  General Fund – Legislature  
 

Moving on to Special Revenue Funds, Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said the 
chart basically showed the expenditures. 

 
City Manager Stahle said we have a lot of special revenue accounts in the City.  Most cities our 
size don’t have nearly as many as we do.  This also impacts your flexibility for the use of money, 
and some of these revenues have zero flexibility.  Not all of these could be converted to General 
Funds.   

 
F. Special Revenue Funds – Overview 

Mrs. Kathy Gilsdorf, Budget Analyst continued with the Special Revenue slide showing FY14 
projected, FY15 proposed and the difference between the two.    

 
Ms. Nichols said she would go over the Special Gross Receipts Tax Income Funds later in more 
detail.   
 
Mayor Galea asked about the Municipal Court fines and Mrs. Gilsdorf explained most of the fines 
collected go into the Court Automation.  Since a lot of the fines go to the State, they get a portion 
back.   



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 22 OF 39 
 
   

Mrs. Gilsdorf then went over the Special Revenue Expenditures page, and said these funds are 
projecting less. 
 

G. Internal Service Funds 
Ms. Nichols covered Internal Service Funds Revenue and Expenditures and that they basically 
showed the in-house fees.  The Landfill, PHA and the Senior Center pay in a revenue and what 
you see between FY14 and FY15 is just that difference.  She went on to explain the differences in 
the Expenditures.  We will be having our technology system evaluated, from the hardware to the 
software, in order to give us the best advice for becoming more efficient and cost effective.   City 
Manager Stahle added it does not include doing anything about it once the study is done.  

  
H. Enterprise Funds     

Ms. Nichols continued with the Enterprise Funds Revenue and pointed out the difference 
between FY14 to FY15 which include projections for a rate increase.  
 
Assistant City Manager McNeile said any grant monies for the airport and library would be 
reflected when received.   
 
Ms. Nichols went on with the Enterprise Funds Expenditures noting Water/Sewer was our largest 
Enterprise Fund and spent more than the PD.  She asked them to turn to page 320 in the Budget 
Books and pointed out the detailed budget.  She then went over Water & Sewer 
Revenue/Expense on the next Power Point slide, noting there is a lot of capitol in the numbers.  
Next was the Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures page. 

    
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if the Waste Water Treatment Plant included Reclaimed and 
was told yes.  He asked if the State’s $300,000 for Bonito Lake was included and was told yes.    

 
Recessed the meeting at 4:34 p.m. and reconvened at 4:43 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Sikes had to leave the meeting at 4:40 p.m.  

 
Rate Analysis - Customer Services Manager Ortega 
(see handout in Power Point) 
Customer Services Manager Ortega explained the Rate Analysis chart.  The staff is required to 
review the rate structure for water/sewer operations annually and report to the commission as 
well as make any recommendations for rate changes.  This presentation will reflect the annual 
rate review for FY15 – FY16 and rate adjustments through June 2016.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked where the excess revenues were being put and Customer 
Services Manager Ortega said they were going to carry-over.  Contract Finance Operation 
Consultant Nichols thought it important for the commission to know that the City knew years ago 
it would have so much capital and you get really good bond ratings when you try to do capital as 
you go.  Any of that left over money from doing an increase now would basically go to the 
ongoing capital.  The reason the City had the goal to keep that at two times the coverage to begin 
with, was so we could pay for ongoing capital.  The $150,000 represents the new amount of 
money generated from the rate increase we are proposing and it would carry over into that 
capital. 
 
Customer Services Manager Ortega said our revenues are not guaranteed; if we go to water 
conservation measures it would hit us pretty hard.    
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler clarified we would have a rate increase now because of the increase 
we will need to have in 2017, and the rate increase now would be used for capital projects.  Mr. 
Ortega said they are budgeted and a portion will be used for this.  He said capital projects were 
budgeted at $600,000 for this year and $1.2 million for next year. Public Works Director Cesar 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 23 OF 39 
 

said the projects were upgrades to the Alamo Filter Plant, replacement of the line from Green to 
Cobblestone Road, two projects at the Alamo Plant and at the La Luz Filter Plant.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentshler said you will use the original money for the first two years and then it 
will be there ready for the RO Plant when it goes on line.  Customer Services Manager Ortega 
said yes. 

 
Commissioner Turnbull asked about connection charges and Customer Services Manager 
Ortega said the revenues from the connection charges are based on the meters we are selling.  
Commissioner Turnbull said people would complain about rate increases when they saw new 
houses being built.  Customer Services Manager Ortega said we followed the 40 Year Water 
Plan on growth so that is considered in all the budget numbers.   

 
Customer Services Manager Ortega continued with the Power Point showing the water base 
proposal and that they were asking for a 2% increase across the board.  We try to save the base 
charges for when we go out for a new loan or new bonds.  They ask for guaranteed funds and 
base charges are guaranteed.  He explained the water commodity and the tier system of 1-5.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked him to explain why we can’t go from 5 to 3 tiers.  Customer 
Services Manager Ortega said he had looked into this and found the revenues from tiers 4 & 5 
are $679,000 and tiers 1-3 would have to be increased by 30% to recover the $679,000.  Mr. 
Ortega said we are a model to other communities going to conservation efforts, and we have 
been commended by the Governor for conservation. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez is agreeing, but part of the blight is the green lawns and trees turning 
brown because of lack of water.  If you lowered the rates so people could water their lawns, they 
would use more water and you wouldn’t lose any money.  Mayor Galea said its certainly worth it 
but then we would have to find the rates to cover our debt service, and our water table is down by 
two feet.  Customer Services Manager Ortega added we will also have additional operating costs 
to produce more water.  When Snake Tank comes on line we will discuss adjusting the Tier 
system. 

 
The commissioners discussed water and keeping yards green, as well as incentives for 
homeowners to keep a neat yard.   Commissioner Baldwin said Bonito Lake isn’t up and running 
and the entire Southwest is in a drought, and he questioned us promoting use of more water.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said people in tier 3 get murdered, tier 2 a little less and they are ok 
at tier 1.  Commissioner Turnbull said we fine those who keep up their yard, but don’t fine the 
ones who don’t.   
 
City Manager Stahle said in most places in the Southwest lawns in front yards are not allowed, 
and they punish with high rates for high water use.   Maybe we should consider alternatives for 
‘green’.   

 
Commissioner Turnbull had to leave the meeting at 5:14 p.m.  
 
City Manager Stahle said we might look at changing the water restrictions, but we need to move 
on. 
 
Customer Services Manager Ortega explained the Rate Comparison slides.   

 
Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler asked which businesses would be affected and Commissioner 
Hernandez said it is pretty much any business with a flush valve; they would have a 1”–2” meter.  
 
Customer Services Manager Ortega said he recommended starting to look at possible funding 
sources for future purchases and expenses – pay as you go.  One recommendation was to place 
a Capital Replacement Surcharge on every utility bill in the City of Alamogordo.  It is done in 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 24 OF 39 
 

other cities and by other utilities to help pay for infrastructure or for capital.  The commission 
would decide how the surcharge would be distributed; he was asking for direction.    
 
City Manager Stahle said the intent is to start developing a fund where you don’t have to borrow 
money every time you want to do anything to improve or replace at the plant.  It means a lot when 
you have to go for a loan.  This would be on the water bill only.  He noted the RO system is going 
to be expensive to operate and we have an inordinately large number of very old lines in the city. 
 The sooner we can develop a replacement program for some of the existing system, the better 
off the city will be.     

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if the current debt service added to the sewer bills would be 
eliminated, and Customer Services Manager Ortega told him they would not be eliminated; they 
would be enhanced. 
 
City Manager Stahle said you have five or six debts that have to be serviced.  It is common for a 
surcharge to ultimately prevent you from having to go out and get debt, so you have cash on 
hand and don’t have to borrow, but it will take a long time to get to that point.  Anytime you can 
put more of a match up for a grant, you have a better chance of getting the money.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if there is anyone who is opposed to bringing it to a future commission 
meeting.  Mayor Pro-tem Rentschler wanted to wait for a quarter or a half.     City Manager Stahle 
said you could also apply it gradually.  
 
City Manager Stahle said you are going to decide on the rate structure at Tuesday night’s 
meeting.  You need to be thinking about it so you can give us direction at that time.   

  
Mayor Galea asked if there is a line replacement plan currently in place.   
 
Ms. Nichols said the Water/Sewer Dept. has $250,000 per year for ongoing pipeline replacement. 
Customer Services Manager Ortega pointed this out on page three of the packet – Misc. Pipeline 
Replacement 2014. 
 
City Manager Stahle asked the commission if they were willing to create a surcharge; we don’t 
have any right now so it is difficult to say how it would be used.  Mayor Galea is willing if it is 
$1.00 per month.   
 
Customer Services Manager Ortega said Ruidoso ran into major problems and had to put a $40 
per month capital surcharge on their water bills until they were able to pay for their capital needs. 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if it had since been repelled and was told it is still there to 
address all their problems.   

  
Commissioner Hernandez said he knew we were being very conservative, but he would like to 
see a 10-15 year outlook for the PD and especially for the FD, concerning manpower.  If the 
volunteer system does not work or we are not able to keep our ISO ratings where they need to 
be, what do we need to do to increase the man-power.  He would like to see this succeed.  City 
Manager Stahle said it will be a tough one and you won’t like the numbers. 
 
Mayor Galea would also like to revisit the employer cost of health care when it comes to the 
employee cost.    
 
Customer Services Manager Ortega asked for direction on the capital surcharge.  City Manager 
Stahle said we will wait until next week when they make some decisions.  There will not be any 
direction today, but can be included as an action item for the commission.  
 
Recessed the meeting at 5:34 p.m. and will reconvene tomorrow at 3:00 p.m.  
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 25 OF 39 
 
 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2014 - 3:00 P.M. 
  

Mayor Galea called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  Mayor Galea announced all 
 Commissioners were present except Commissioner Straface and Commissioner Baldwin. 
 

Other Director’s Present:  City Manager Stahle, City Attorney Thies, City Clerk Cantin, Ms. 
Nichols, Assistant City Manager McNeile, Public Works Director Cesar, Police Chief Duncan, Fire 
Chief Ward, City Engineer Thomas, and Human Resource Manager Josselyn. 

  
I. Capital Improvement Projects 

Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said Mrs. Kathy Gilsdorf would go over these 
slides that include everything in the fiscal 15 post budget. 
 
Mrs. Gilsdorf told the commissioners this was a list of all the major new projects budgeted for the 
FY15 proposed budget, and then listed the Legislative Capital Improvement projects.  Ms. 
Gilsdorf pointed out figures on the Water & Sewer Projects page.    

 
 City Manager Stahle said the Corp of Engineers (COE) money was match money.   
 

 J1Capital Funding Resources. 
 (see handout with Power Point) 

Ms. Nichols covered the Capital Funding Sources: 1984 GRT (Fund 42), 1996 GRT (Fund 69), 
Environmental GRT (Fund 89), Infrastructure GRT (Fund 61).  She showed them the numbers in 
the various fund sources for capital.  The first one was Fund 42 and she noted we are well within 
the debt service coverage.   

 
 Mayor Galea asked about the debt service coverage percentage.  City Manager Stahle told her 
you can not go below 2%, but the higher the better so you’ll have money for a project you want 
done.  Mayor Galea said we’ve talked about other projects and we could talk about doing them 
this year.   
 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said it is important to point out that this is a 
capital fund resource and not for operations.  It can cover this street maintenance operation and 
has done so for years, but we don’t put any operations in here; we transfer them out. 

 
Ms. Nichols continued with Fund 69 that pays for the Quality of Life Bond issues and amounts for 
flood control.  She felt the downturn in gross receipts tax had caused debt service coverage to be 
below 1.5%, but felt it would come back up.  City Manager Stahle said this is based on a fairly flat 
revenue picture for next year.   

 
Ms. Nichols said they would discuss a fund balance reserve on Monday.  She felt it was highly 
important for them to consider this.  She would be recommending they set aside in reserve half of 
the bond payment as a safe guard in case the GRT falls down.   

 
 Environmental GRT – Fund 89 Multi-year Budget 

Ms. Nichols said this was the tax passed in 1993 or 1994 when the landfill was built.  That has 
since been paid for so there isn’t any debt service in here.  She recommended they consider 
setting aside a portion of these monies when they talk about fund balance reserves.   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if this could be used to help fund the Desal plant and to fund 
the examination of the landfill and was told yes.   

 
Ms. Nichols said we would be bringing over the final budget on July 22nd with carry-over 
balances, so you can put those in the final budget, and you’ll have that choice throughout the 
year.    



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 26 OF 39 
 
 
 Infrastructure GRT – Fund 61  

Ms. Nichols said this fund does not have any bond issues attached; it has been used for various 
things, but mainly for matching monies related to the airport.  She gave some history of this fund 
and Fund 63.  This money only goes so far so you must look at the future.   
 
Mayor Galea asked why we do not account for the matches in the future for additional 
improvements at the airport.  City Manager Stahle said we try to limit how much match money we 
put in until we actually know what we are going to get.   
 
   

 J2 Capital Improvement Projects: 
 
 Airport Improvements – Fund 40 

Ms. Nichols noted there were no scheduled projects for FY15 as of this date.   
 
 Current Year Bonding Projects 

Ms. Nichols didn’t have specific slides for the on-going bond projects.  She said the City has 
estimated they will be complete in the current fiscal year and what does not get done will be 
carried over and will show up in the final budget on July 22nd.    

  
City Manager Stahle said one example is Fund 118; we will not finish some of the major projects 
before July 1st, so we will carry the monies over and finish them out.   

 
 Flood Control Corps Project – Fund 56 
 Ms. Nichols covered this project that began in 2000.   
 

City Manager Stahle talked about the influence of the federal government’s financial condition on 
our level.  We have been warned the COE may tweak the local match requirement; we are now at 
25%.  We need to be vigilant to what the feds are doing.  He said another important thing to note 
is we have to cough up our share right away.   We have to put in the necessary match when we 
are ready for the next part of the project. Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said 
they have to have it before October 1st which is the federal fiscal year.   
 
She showed the estimated amounts of In Kind, Corp and totals.  At the end of FY15, it is 
estimated we will have spent $18,366,000.    

 
City Manager Stahle said it would be appropriate to remind you when we do work with the Corp 
and complete the Flood Control Project, the flood maps will be changed and we will be saving 
property owners a lot of money.  This is an investment in our community that certainly benefits 
the private and public properties.   

 
 J3.  Street Capital Improvement Projects 

Ms. Nichols started with Street Capital – Fund 109.  There are two separate GRTs passed for 
Street Capital: Street Maintenance Program (SMP) passed in 2004, and the 2008 GRT which 
was intended to do new roads and those streets needing to be completely redone.  You are 
generating about $1.5 million per year and can use that to do the street project.  She said there is 
$800,000 set aside in Utilities every year strictly for street projects. 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler commented the recent problem has been that the street projects have 
stripped the Utility money we have.    City Manager Stahle said the $800,000 is up to you and you 
may increase that amount. 

  
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said there is fund balance available in Fund 81.   
City Manager Stahle said once the fund balance is gone the flexibility is gone. 
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 27 OF 39 
 

Mayor Galea brought up the Public Arts Charter that gives 1% of all road projects to Public Arts 
along the roadway.  Ms. Nichols said that does not fall into the Ordinance language of the 
passing of that tax, so she felt you would have to discuss it with the city attorney.  This was 
discussed among the commissioners. 

 
  Street GRT Capital/SMP – Fund 109 
 Ms. Nichols noted this went from $590,000 to $1,123,000.  This one will be spent in FY14; FY15  

will begin with zero.  With this fund you can do one of two things; you can accumulate this and 
use it for streets.  Since it has a debt service, we recommend you set aside half of the payment – 
this is a one time set aside.  We are going to combine the 2008 and 2004 after we have 
completed the Fund 118 projects.   She went on to cover the 2004 Gross Receipts Tax – SMP.  It 
generates $1.4 million per year.    

  
 R.O./Snake Tank/Desalination Project 

Ms. Nichols said this is the capital project fund, so all transactions are related solely to the 
RO/Snake Tank Desal project.  

 
Accounting Manager Boyle said the $1.9 is not proceeds money; you have to spend the money 
first and then get reimbursed. 

 
Mayor Galea doesn’t understand why we are spending $2.1 million a year for the Holloman 
transmission line.  Public Works Director Cesar explained and there was discussion on the 
project 

  
Commissioner Hernandez asked when we can expect to use water from the Desal project.  
Public Works Director Cesar said it will be about two years.  Commissioner Hernandez asked 
when he felt the project would be 100% completed, and Public Works Director Cesar gave his 
projections.  Commissioner Hernandez asked when the RO skid would be purchased and Public 
Works Director Cesar said it would be in roughly two years.  When it is operational it will produce 
one million gallons of water a day.  Commissioner Hernandez thought technology would change 
in two years.  Mr. Cesar felt that in 2017 the plant will be up and running.  By 2020 the parallel 
transmission line that will run next to the Bonito line will be in place and that completes the first 
phase of the project; we will need to expand over time.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler and Public 
Works Director Cesar discussed the project in more detail.   

 
Mayor Galea wondered if the commission would be open to discussing a regional water plan.  

 
City Manager Stahle said he had been contacted by Ruidoso about water and said the big 
question here is what’s in it for the City of Alamogordo.  We would be foolish not to be open to 
discussion.  

 
Ms. Nichols pointed out that in 2018, if these plans continue, we will be short and we will be 
looking for grants.  City Attorney Thies said we have two loans from the Water Trust Board.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the question is do we have to use all the money from the Water 
Trust Board before we can apply for new money.  Ms. Nichols understood the money was a grant 
with a loan component. Public Works Director Cesar said we can apply, but they were not 
granting any monies if the applicant had other projects still on the books and had not expended 
down to 10%-15%.  Ms. Nichols said you can still apply for loans through the NMFA or a bond 
issue.    

 
Recessed the meeting at 4:18 p.m. and reconvened at 4:32 p.m.  
 
 1986 ¼ % GRT – Fund 49 

Ms. Nichols explained Fund 49 – the outside water resource funding.  This is a capital funding 
source and there isn’t any operating in it, except for in-house engineering.  $2.1 million will be 
taken out for the Snake Tank project.     



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 28 OF 39 
 
 

Mayor Galea asked about the sediment part that is not funded.  City Manager Stahle said that 
would be up to the City.  If there is dredging equipment on site the mobilization expense will be 
significant so if we are going to try and dig more out, that would be the time.  We are guessing 
the cost of dredging just the amount from the fire, so until we have real numbers it is hard to do.  
You 
need to put that in perspective with all these other expenses.    Ms. Nichols pointed out the 
money 
in the Environmental GRTs could be used as well.  She said if you remember in the RO project, 
she had put a bond issue in their bond proceeds of $4.5 million to help cover cost in future years. 
 The debt service of that bond issue would be paid from this fund.  With an additional $365,000 of 
debt service and the $2.1 million that we’ve been carrying through FY20, we are running short.  
We hope our GRT turns around to make up for this, or some of these expenditures are under.  It 
is something to watch out for. 

  
J4.  Water & Sewer Capital Improvement Projects 
 
J. Debt Service 
Accounting Manager Boyle showed the 2015 obligations and how they are broken down.  As of right 
now we have 19 debts with two of those being the Desal project.  If we don’t do another loan, we will 
owe $76 billion over the next 20 years.  He remarked that the city is in good shape from a debt 
standpoint.   
 
Mayor Galea asked how much more before we could not borrow.  Mr. Boyle said after 10 years you 
can get new money to pay off other money, and we did a lot of that in 2011 because of the better 
interest rates.  We will have to wait 10 more years before we could do that again.   
 
Ms. Nichols said the city manager has asked her to look at a debt management policy for the 
commission to consider.   
 
City Manager Stahle also wanted the commissioners to get a spreadsheet of the call dates for 
various funds.  Our debt is something we need to be very careful of.  When we did the last GO Bond, 
we no longer have a lot of GO Bond capacity since those two passed.  You would be crazy to use all 
our capacity at any time.   
   
Commissioner Hernandez left the meeting at 4:46 p.m. 
 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols mentioned there was a plan so we knew exactly 
when those would pay off and you could float another one, and we are going to get that back 
together. 
 
Accounting Manager Boyle said on page 252 or 253 of your Budget Book there is a summary of each 
debt.  He told them which loans would be ready in 2014 to potentially re-do.  Ms. Nichols said there is 
a lot of thought that must go into this.  Just because it is callable and you are able to refund doesn’t 
mean you necessarily need to do that unless you have a good plan. Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said 
if we can get down to 1% than it would be something to look at and consider. 
 
City Manager Stahle reminded all that on Tuesday at 4:30 p.m. a Public Hearing will be held where 
you can make motions to amend what has been presented.  At the 7:00 p.m. meeting that evening 
you will have the actual tentative budget to approve, and you will have the final in July. 
 
Mayor Galea asked everyone to write out any motions to amend and give to all commissioners so 
there won’t be any duplication.  Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols remarked the budget 
has to be balanced, so if you have changes that would add additional impact to the budget, we will 
need time to figure that out. 
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 29 OF 39 
 
Mayor Galea asked for pay scale information compared to other communities and City Manager 
Stahle said he could provide it by tomorrow morning.   
 
Recessed the meeting at 4:50 p.m. and will reconvene Monday, May 12th at 3:00 p.m. here at 
the Fire Station.  
 
 Not Covered: 
 General Obligation – Property Tax (Fund 53)   
 
 Revenue Bond P & I (Fund 59)   
 
  Water/Sewer Bond P & I (Fund 82)   
  
MONDAY, MAY 12, 2014 - 3:00 P.M. 
 

Mayor Galea called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  Commissioner Baldwin and Mayor Pro-
Tem Rentschler were absent.  All other commissioners were present. 

 
Other Director’s Present:  City Manager Stahle, City Attorney Thies, City Clerk Cantin, Contract 
Finance Operation Consultant Nichols, Assistant City Manager McNeile, Public Works Director 
Cesar, Police Chief Duncan, Fire Chief Ward, City Engineer Thomas, and Human Resource 
Manager Josselyn. 

 
City Manager Stahle drew their attention to the skipped areas from last week – the Fund Reserve 
Policy recommendations.  They will begin with that today and then the Administrative Fees, 
Franchise Fees, Trusts, Agencies, Public Housing, and Other Outside Agencies.   

 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said we want to talk about the fund balances and 
that it is important the city make a policy.  We do not have a written policy ready at this point.   

 
K. Policy Recommendations 

E1. Fund Reserve Policy 
GASB 54/ Restricted, Committed Funding was presented by Helen Viscarra-Reno 
Assistant Finance Director Viscarra-Reno went over the Policy Recommendation. City Manager 
Stahle clarified GASB as Governmental Accounting and Standards Board, and GASB 54 is their 
policy recommendations.  Assistant Finance Director Viscarra-Reno continued with the 
information concerning GASB 54 which was illustrated on the Power Point slides.  
 
Ms. Nichols said the city audit was as of June 30, 2014.  The finance department did prepare a 
management discussion and analysis and throughout the audit it does point out fund balance.  
The fund balance has those specific five categories of non-spendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned and unassigned.  She gave the numbers associated with these categories.  We need 
you to understand that the commission has to pass a policy in order for the audit to recognize 
these areas, so we need to get this done.  We are asking to bring that final policy when we bring 
the final budget back to you on July 22nd and make it retroactive back to June 30, 2014, so we 
are able to categorize that fund balance.  The audit showed the total unassigned fund balance 
was $9,334,000.  She continued with the Fund Balance slide.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked for her projection as of June 30, 2014, and she said that analysis 
had not yet been done.  When it is done she will let them know.   
 
City Manager Stahle said the unassigned is for major capital projects that have been approved 
and are being addressed.   
 
Commissioner Straface would like to know what the unassigned, uncommitted balance is.     



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 30 OF 39 
 
 

Ms. Nichols referred then to page 15 – the All Funds Summary (3 pages before the General Fund 
tab.)  She pointed out the recaps.   
 
Mayor Galea said as it is now, $2.3 million will be left in the General Fund cash balance, and 
maybe there will be a million dollars left before adopting the reserve. Ms. Nichols responded the 
$1,067,000 has to come out of the $2.3 million; there is where you have the $1.3 million that is 
unappropriated at this point.  She reminded everyone these are all estimated numbers.  General 
Funds are usually your most unrestricted funds. 
 
Ms. Nichols went on with the recommendations to adopt a two month operating reserve.  These 
all would be based on operations and not on capital.      
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler joined the meeting at 3:21 p.m. 
Mayor Galea asked if that was already assigned but not restricted.  Ms. Nichols said yes, but 
since the city commission cannot approve a budget past the current year, we would want to 
include this in the policy in order to make it consistent.  City Manager Stahle added some of these 
operating reserves will take some time to build up.  We are required by law to have a one month 
reserve.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked what that dollar amount would be.  Ms. Nichols said she had some 
slides to show that and she continued with the slides.  In 2012, when we had the flooding we 
inquired into using this reserve and found we could but it would have to be replenished by the 
end of the fiscal year.   City Manager Stahle added that is why we need that additional reserve. 
 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said we will put language in the policy where it 
can be used and it will be flexible for the city.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked what that will do to our planning, and was concerned about the 
immediate future.  City Manager Stahle said it is up to you how you want to do this, and how the 
reserve would be spent is entirely up to you.    
 
Commissioner Straface asked about spending and City Manager Stahle explained we have had 
to dip into the reserve.  Ms. Nichols explained what the City had done this year budget wise, and 
that we are using fund balance for the budget.  Commissioner Straface said you can’t do that 
forever and all agreed.   City Manager Stahle said this is why we asked you to allow us to put 
together a Five Year Plan.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if we used $1.6 million to balance this fiscal year, and Ms. 
Nichols said it was for FY14.  We are using $3 million this year, for 2015.   
 
Mayor Galea said we would need a lot of new economic development opportunities in the city to 
make up the difference in GRT revenues.  Commissioner Straface remarked we could reduce.  
Mayor Galea said there a lot of services we provide which other communities do not.  Discussion 
amongst the commissioners and city manager. 

 
Ms. Nichols went on saying the General Fund subsidizes the Court Operations, Community 
Services, Community Development, Senior Center and Airport.  Because these are Operational 
Funds, they should be included in the reserve for two months.  They would have to set aside an 
additional $1.3 million.  She continued explaining how to set money aside.  This could be done 
over four years or even five, six, eight or ten years.    
 
Commissioner Straface asked if we had only 1/12th reserve would it include those five things you 
listed.  Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said in the General Fund, yes.  It would 
include the General Fund operations and the operations the General Fund subsidizes.  
Commissioner Straface asked if they had operating reserves and was told no.   



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 31 OF 39 
 

 
Ms. Nichols recommended all Enterprise Funds have an equal two month reserve.  She 
explained the Fund Reserve Recommendations slide going through each fund.  She reminded 
the commission that when money is set aside for the Reserve it is a one time thing and won’t 
have to be done again.   
 
City Manager Stahle said the underlying principal behind the Reserve Policy is important to 
understand.  You have money now that you could spend, but the reality is that you have already 
dedicated most of it.  It is important for you to look ahead and get our financial house in order.   

 
Commissioner Straface said we have three choices: we could say no, we could say we want to 
do this immediately, or we could say we want to do this over a period of years.  City Manager 
Stahle said that is correct.   
 

Accounting Manager Boyle said the GFOA recommends there be a Fund Reserve Policy, and the 
City has not had one.  It shows the City is planning ahead and thinking about the future.  All audits 
are on the State website and someone could make assumptions they shouldn’t because we don’t 
have a reserve. City Manager Stahle said it also goes to Wall Street and that makes a big difference. 
 He was surprised the City of Alamogordo didn’t have a policy.  He said it’s important that it be 
adopted prior to the final budget adoption in order for it to show in the next audit.  We will probably be 
bringing it to you the first meeting in July. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler’s biggest concern is whether this is a good year to start it, since we are 
coming off a significant GRT downturn.  City Manager Stahle said that might speak to how many 
years you want to use in order to build this up.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said his concern was if 
the NM Legislature does not respond to the Hold-Harmless.  Mayor Galea thought that was a reason 
to start it now in order to have some safety net. 
 
Commissioner Sikes said it was unrestricted so we could access it if needed, and City Manager 
Stahle said we could access our part but not the 1/12th.  Ms. Nichols said we could make our reserve 
flexible.  Commissioner Straface asked how we could access the 1/12th and was told by amending 
the budget.  City Manager Stahle said good financial planning suggests this policy is needed.   
 
Ms. Nichols reminded them it isn’t simply good financial planning; we won’t be able to do these five 
categories without a policy. 
 
E4. Administrative Fees/(Franchise Fees) - allocations 
Ms. Nichols explained the Administrative Fees.  All the city operations utilize the Administrative Fees. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked what percentage goes into Administrative Fees.  She didn’t know  
the exact percentage but explained how they arrive at the figure.   
 
City Manager Stahle said for example we have Solid Waste and we have an Authority.  There are 
certain expenses the attorney incurs as a result of advising the Special District.  That is what this is. 
 
Mayor Galea said part of the Admin. Cost is part of the transfers out.  What else is part of transfers 
out?  Ms. Nichols said the Admin. Fees are not transfers out, those are Internal Services.  
 
Commissioner Straface and City Manager Stahle discussed the Admin. Fees.    
 
Ms. Nichols said in the Admin. Fees, we take the total budget of various departments and calculate 
what that budget is to the total budget of all.  She continued with her explanation.  She noted the 
$943,183 total was inaccurate; we will make that correction.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 32 OF 39 
 
Commissioner Straface said when you say Enterprise Fund to me that means it’s self supporting.  
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said it is supposed to be.  He went on to discuss this 
with Ms. Nichols. 
 
Ms. Nichols pointed out that the City Manager in 2012 charged all of the Enterprise Funds including 
the Housing Authority a 5% Franchise Fee in addition to this.  So the Administrative Fee amounts 
include administration fees to cover the General Fund expenditures for the City Manager, City Clerk, 
Finance, and City Attorney.  The other is franchise fees.  The Franchise Fees in the budget being 
presented to you have been eliminated with the exception of the Water/Sewer Operating (F-81).  She 
explained why this is being done. 
 
City Manager Stahle said the brutal fact is we were double charging the budgets and that is not 
normal.  Commissioner Straface asked how much you are losing and City Manager Stahle said we 
have absorbed it, so in the proposed budget it is taken into account.    
 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols explained further.  City Manager Stahle said this is 
getting us back to what is considered normal accounting.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked what the amount was that was absorbed.  Ms. Nichols responded 
$433,000.  
  
City Manager Stahle said that whatever you funded for Other Agencies had to be matched in this 
budget.  If you did not fund them last year, it is not in here this year.  There isn’t any money for 
S.A.N.E. or Alamogordo Club for Teens.  You only funded Zia, OCEDC and the Chamber, and we 
funded those three.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked about the Alamogordo Club for Teens asking for $5,000 or a 
building.  Would the Civic Center be available to them if it met the scheduled times, and the city 
manager said the scheduled times would be an issue.  He asked about the outside offices within it, 
and Mayor Galea said she thought they were looking for stations for homework and computers, like a 
clubhouse.  It was noted the Library was full.   
 
City Manager Stahle said this is one of the hardest things any jurisdiction faces, because a lot of 
entities have wonderful programs you would like to fund.  The problem is we have our own level of 
service that would be impacted if you do divert money to them.  He explained how this has been 
done by other jurisdictions. 
 
Commissioner Sikes feels like it’s a repetition of services.  She noted many churches do something, 
there is the Recreation Center and a Library with after-school services and the Boys and Girls Club.  
Mayor Galea would like to see a presentation on this.  Commissioner Sikes said she appreciated 
what they are trying to do but they are not a proven agency and have no success record.  There was 
further discussion on this.    
 
City Manager Stahle said if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak to any of this they 
were welcome, but this is what has been budgeted.   
 
L. Outside Agencies 
 
Chamber of Commerce Services (fund 20) 
Lenora Stevens, Vice-President of the Alamogordo Chamber of Commerce addressed the 
commission. (See handout).  She said they are requesting the same for both of their contracts – 
Tourism Contract remains at $25,000 per year and Promotional Services Contract at $26,000 per 
year. Ms. Stevens explained how the monies are used and gave statistics for the past year. 
 
She did not have a presentation for OCEDC but had a handout and could answer any questions. 
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 33 OF 39 
 
Economic Development (Fund 20 & 105) 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if all outside agencies are up to date on their audits, and the city 
manager felt they were.  He knew that OCEDC and Chamber came up with the required reports.   
 
Zia Therapy – Z-Trans (Fund 44) 
Joe Hardin presented the Z-Trans report.  He remarked there was some controversy last year over 
the Las Cruces transportation.  He thought they would see by the charts that their ridership has 
almost doubled over the last year. We did institute a $3.00 fare and are still experiencing an increase 
in ridership for Las Cruces; these are mainly students.  He explained the complete program.  They 
were glad to have the same amount this year as last.  DOT gave us two years to prove the Las 
Cruces program and they did it within schedule so that has allowed us to roll it into our application for 
federal funding for FY15-16.   
 
Commissioner Turnbull asked about the adding more bus shelters.  Joe Hardin said they would love 
to, but will have to work with the city to coordinate.  City Manager Stahle said one issue is that the 
clientele changes at locations, so needs change. 
 
Mr. Hardin said they have added county stops for Dona Ana County in order to get that county into 
the program.  We don’t charge them $3.00 since it is such a short trip into Las Cruces.   That county 
is paying through the Regional Transit District and we are billing through RTD. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said he could support the local routes but not the Las Cruces route.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked Mr. Hardin about the application to the Federal Transit Authority.  
He asked if that reduced the load on the city, and was told no.  The city is supporting the Las Cruces 
run with $10,000.   
 
Sharon Gilsdorf said the city is putting in $10,000, Las Cruces is putting in $10,000, NMSU is putting 
in $10,000, and Otero County is putting in $10,000. The City’s total is $109,989.20.  Ms. Gilsdorf said 
that of the $109,000 put in by the City, the federal government puts in an additional $153,000, so city-
wide the transportation is $263,000.  Mescalero puts in more than the City but they operate on the 
Saturday system.   
 
Mayor Galea said she is definitely in support of the Las Cruces route.    
 
Sharon Gilsdorf asked if they had a chance to read the success story of the individual who is 
wheelchair bound and blind.  He used our system to go to NMSU-A.  He is now using the route to go 
to Las Cruces to continue his education.   
 
Joe Hardin felt Z-Trans has proved itself over the years.  This year we are looking at going over 
120,000 riders.  Mayor Galea said this is something that will be looked at through BRAC.  Joe Hardin 
said we have been surprised at the number of students who have been riding this year.  Sharon 
Gilsdorf said we also have some people from Las Cruces riding to work here, and others going to Las 
Cruces to work. 
 
Alamogordo Club for Teens, Corp. 
He had to leave for a medical appointment. 
 
SANE of Otero/Lincoln Counties 
Kari Rankin, the director of SANE was disheartened to hear they were not included in the budget.  
She asked if anyone here was expecting to get in a car accident on the way home, and answered no. 
She asked if anyone here was expecting to get sexually assaulted on their way home, and answered 
no.  We know it happens here and know it can go unreported.  We have to send victims to Las 
Cruces for services because we have not had the ability to serve the victims of our area.  She was 
asking for money for the nurses.  They are able to offer follow-up care for victims.  They come to us 
for a medical exam, we give them the cocktail of STI medications and send them on their way with a 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 34 OF 39 
 
mental health referral.  We hope they follow up with their primary care physician, but after that we 
have no choice but to be done with it.   What she would like to see happening in the program is for 
those nurses to be able to follow up with the victims/patients and call them up three weeks later to 
see how they are doing, have they followed up, are they taking the medications.  What people don’t 
realize is our exams are only good for a five day period and our STI medications are good within a 30 
day period of an assault.  If victims aren’t coming forward to tell people they have been assaulted 
they are probably not going to their primary care providers to be tested for various STI’s.  If we have 
people walking around with various STI’s then we potentially have a public health risk.  Our program 
can offer those completely anonymous because we are bound by HIPA, and by our nurses being 
able to provide that after care service it allows them to ask those questions and make sure they are 
doing ok and following up.  We know attackers attack an average of six times.  If the first one gets 
help and reports it then we possibly save five other victims.  The other thing she was looking for was 
on-call pay for the nurses.  Our program budget is very small and we only receive state grant funding 
from the coalition programs out of Albuquerque.  She said their nurses were amazing and all work 
crazy shifts – ER nurses, labor/delivery nurses and more who will come in after 12 hour shifts with no 
questions asked.  They are also on call and many of our calls come in at 2 a.m., 11 p.m., etc.  She 
would like to also offer them compensation for a 12 hour shift outside of what they are already doing 
for us.  In addition, this should help us retain and recruit more nurses, because the first question they 
ask is if we offer on-call pay.  We do not because we do not have the funding for it.  (unintelligible)  If 
they report it to law enforcement now the Las Cruces nurse has to come here.  We would really like 
to keep this within our community.  For follow-up care nursing she asked for $200.00; the standard 
nurses pay is $28.00 per hour.  We are a target for (50?) cases for the year and that would include 
follow-up care for each case.  She was asking for $8,760 for on-call pay and that is at a $2.00 per 
hour standard rate times 12 hours per day times 500 equaling 4,380 hours for the entire year.   The 
total she is requesting is $10,160. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked how she was funded and she told him strictly by NM Coalition of 
Sexual Assault Programs; they provide the grant money.   
 
Commissioner Sikes asked how many victims they had this year and Ms. Rankin told her this year, 
2014, to date they have had 17.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked if they have requested funding from other agencies and she said they 
have not.  There are some internal issues they are working out to be able to do that.  Commissioner 
Straface asked if a request had been made to the County and she said not yet.  She said she is new 
to the process and she had come in under the wire since a lot of her focus had been in rounding out 
and learning about this program.  She has been in Albuquerque with the Coalition learning about this 
and so she is trying to catch up now.  Ms. Rankin said she wants to go to the County.   
Mayor Galea said she sees this as a necessary service and you are saying your shortfall after the 
state funding is $10,160.  Ms. Rankin said their state funding covers salaries only.  She is required to 
be there and they have a clinical coordinator who is a nurse and is also required to be there in order 
to take care of medications and all medical information.  Our entire budget goes towards salary; 
neither of us work full time in this position.  This is something that benefits the community and the 
more we get the word out there about sexual assault the more people will know.  They can come to 
us without telling anybody; we are primarily a medical service bound by HIPA and our nurses are 
trained in forensics. 
 
Mayor Galea said she knew this was a question for our city attorney.  Commissioner Sikes had a 
great question last year asking if there was a revenue stream that could be created through a court 
fine.  She wondered if that question had ever been answered.  Commissioner Sikes said we never 
pursued it.  Kari Rankin remarked the previous director had said this was something we should look 
in to.  Their priorities have been all over the place and it is something we are looking for.  Obviously, 
we work with (?) and our Sexual Assault Response Team and so she would like to have that 
conversation with the various court systems between here and Lincoln County.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 35 OF 39 
 
Commissioner Sikes said she mentioned the Sexual Assault Response Team (SART) and wondered 
how much overlap there was between what she does, what SART does and what the organization 
from Holloman does.  Ms. Rankin said basically they are a part of SART.  We are there primarily to 
review what comes through – how is law enforcement dealing with it, how is the hospital dealing with 
it, how are the SANE staffers dealing with it, and the Holloman group.  We all try to get together to 
discuss issues and we usually discuss (pediatric?) issues because we don’t want to see them fall 
through the cracks. The idea is that together we can have better systems in place to deal with the 
issues as they come up.  Is the hospital calling the right people when they show up at the emergency 
room?  Do all the cops know what to do when they get a victim?  That is the purpose of SART; make 
sure all the outside agencies know what each does and how to react with each other.  None of us 
can stand alone.  SANE does a medical exam.  They are nurses who make sure the victim is ok and 
sometimes are the first person to tell the victim they are believed and will be ok. 
 
Commissioner Sikes said the victim can get that at the hospital, too.  Ms. Rankin said the hospital 
likes to send them to us.  Commissioner Sikes asked why and Ms. Rankin said no one wants to talk 
to a sexual assault victim, let’s be honest.  Commissioner Sikes said it is 2014 and they are talking 
about it.  Ms. Rankin said that is true, but we still kind of shy away from it.  Commissioner Sikes said 
it is happening to three victims a month.  Ms. Rankin said unfortunately yes, reported.  The rest aren’t 
coming in and we know that.  A large part of it is the media says to us it is violent crimes committed 
by strangers, when that is a small percentage.  We know most are by someone you know and that 
makes things more confusing.  For instance, they say it was my husband’s friend and I don’t want to 
cause any problems so I won’t say anything.  Ms. Rankin stated we know sexual assault will most 
likely happen with someone you know and likely will happen in your house.  All those issues combine 
– are we going to blame the victim, will they believe me – so we just don’t talk about it.  
Commissioner Sikes said she is playing devil’s advocate here; the more I ask these questions the 
more you talk about what you do, and she thought what they do is extremely important.  
  
Mayor Galea said what if we can leverage a partnership with the County.  We did something similar 
with the state for the New Mexico Museum of Space History (NMMSH).  Could we guarantee funding 
if the County could match it?  Hypothetically, if we threw out $5,000, it would be up to the County to 
match it in order to equal $10,000.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez stated he was going way out on a limb that might snap off, but that doesn’t 
matter.  The issue you brought up about fines from the Magistrate and Municipal courts to fund this; it 
has been 12 months since this was brought up and he knew she was extremely busy and her 
predecessor was extremely busy doing things that she probably shouldn’t have been doing, and 
that’s the limb that is probably going to snap off, but he thought if they would have done that instead 
of what they were doing maybe you guys would have that in place, or the possibility of having that in 
place.  He said to continue looking at us when we are short-falling again, we can’t give our 
employees raises or anything like that yet we are going to pay your employees $28.00 per hour; that 
was really tough for him.  He knows this is a needed service and he works with them quite a bit on 
some of the stuff they do, but he felt there were other resources out there that could help you, also, 
and you aren’t tapping those.  Ms. Rankin agreed with him and couldn’t speak to what the former 
director did (and something about three months).  Commissioner Hernandez said it wasn’t good and 
there’s a really bad taste so it makes it tough.  Ms. Rankin asked him to take her on and not the 
former director.  Commissioner Hernandez said ok, but still saying, that is the problem.  He went on 
to say he understood what she was saying and he agreed with her.     
 
Commissioner Sikes asked when the County goes through their budget process.  City Manager 
Stahle said they are in the process like we are.  Commissioner Sikes said Mayor Galea has had a 
good idea because that would almost double your money and shows on the part of the County.  It 
worked with the Space Museum when we tried that.  She was told by someone that was a one time 
deal.   
 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 36 OF 39 
 
City Manager Stahle said tomorrow is the time for direction from this Commission on how you want to 
handle any changes to the budget, and that would obviously be a change unless you had any other 
questions. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked if this would come out of the general fund and was told yes. 
 
Mayor Galea asked if the commission wanted this to come up on discussion tomorrow as a one time 
budget change adjustment. 
 
City Manager Stahle said we did, unless there is anything else from outside agencies, list a trusted 
agency fund, so he wanted to back up and catch that.  
 
It was decided to take a break. 
 
Recessed the meeting at 4:47 p.m. and reconvened at 5:02 p.m.  
 
M. Trust & Agencies 
L1.  Trust & Agencies Funds Summary 
Ms. Nichols explained the Trust and Agency Funds.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked why there are no expenditures in the cemetery/perpetual care 
fund. Ms. Nichols said it is for long term care after the cemetery is filled to its capacity.  Mayor Galea 
said in our long term planning for the cemetery, are there other areas where it can be extended.  City 
Manager Stahle said it is pretty much surrounded by private property, so if they needed to expand we 
will have to go elsewhere.  Assistant City Manager McNeile said we currently have 2,000 cremation 
plats available, which would be about 20 years worth.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked about the Corp of Engineers Escrow Account Reserve.  City Manager 
Stahle said we put money into the account and they tap that.  Ms. Nichols said we have a 10-15 year 
Corp project for Flood Control and in that agreement whatever money we pay them for that year has 
to go into an escrow account by August 15th prior to their fiscal year.  Ms. Nichols told Commissioner 
Straface we are funding it at 25% and we are in the last phase on that.   
  
L2.  Public Housing Authority 
 Component Unit 
Capital Fund Projects (Fund 904) 
 
Low Rent Operating (Fund 901) 
 
Homeownership Operating (Fund 903) 
Mayor Galea understood that because of new policy, they cannot have a large reserve balance.  Are 
there plans to utilize the use-or-lose portion of that?  Maggie Paluch, Operations Manager said it’s 
not that we can’t have a large fund balance, it’s that they don’t recommend as much as we have.  
HUD requires four months on reserve or 40%.   
 
Mayor Galea asked if there were any remodels or improvements planned with more than 40% and 
Ms. Paluch told her no. 
 
City Manager Stahle said we are contending with houses the city already owns, and he has worked 
with Habitat for Humanity to see if they have any interest in them; they do not.  We will revisit that 
issue.  Commissioner Straface asked for a list of these properties and Ms. Paluch said she and her 
staff would be more than happy to give a tour.  Mayor Galea explained the past history on these 
properties. 
              
N. Any other unfinished discussions 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 37 OF 39 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler brought up a Zipper machine used to remove asphalt.  He felt if we had 
this machine in-house we would be much more likely to use it for the smaller jobs, and he noted 
some places where this could be used.  He also discussed working on the South Fork. 
 
City Manager Stahle had asked the Public Works Director for an estimate to work on the South Fork 
and was told about $45,000.  They spoke about communicating with the residents in that area.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he was told we own the day time flows but not the night time flows, 
and that was discussed.  Mayor Galea said she agrees with being pro-active but also fair.  City 
Manager Stahle said we do have an obligation to manage our water resource. 
 
Mayor Galea asked the cost of the Zipper machine.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said it would be 
$135,000.  Mayor Galea asked how often it would be utilized.   
 
Commissioner Sikes said we can sell the striping machine we never use.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said Pastor Forney came last year to ask the City to look at the road in 
front of his church.  Commissioner Hernandez went to look at that section from Delaware to Maryland 
and saw it was bad.  The rest of the road was great and wouldn’t need to be done.   City Manager 
Stahle said we currently contract that expense and if we had our own equipment it would save us.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said it would also be to help run utilities. There was more discussion on 
the machine and how it is used. 
 
Mayor Galea asked if this is something we will see as an adjustment to the budget tomorrow and 
Contract Finance Operation Consultant Nichols said she would put it on the list.   
 
Mayor Galea said Human Resource Manager Josselyn had provided her with a list of comparable PD 
and FD salaries from other communities.  Our officers are paid more and she was surprised by that, 
and Commissioner Hernandez said the reason was because we are closer to the border.  She 
proposed we not give a reoccurring annual cost of living increase this year, and instead give a one 
time 5% of their gross pay merit.  Commissioner Hernandez didn’t have a problem with that but said 
there are a lot of other employees. 
 
Mayor Galea asked how that would affect the budget overall if we did the one time 5% merit across 
the board.    
 
Commissioner Hernandez said we have a Five Year Outlook, and there isn’t anything in there for 
salaries and benefits other than the insurance we are talking about.  We have already cost our blue 
collar employees 25% in the last two years.  He discussed negotiations.  Mayor Galea asked what he 
would propose to negotiate with, fringe benefits, paying more insurance, or what? 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said we did negotiate the 1.5% and they never agreed to it.  City Manager 
Stahle said that was APSOA only.  Commissioner Straface said there are several options, but when 
you give a percentage it goes on forever.  You can offer a set dollar amount every year and give the 
employees an option as to how they want to use it.     
 
Commissioner Hernandez said this year we are budgeting $300,000 for police and fire vehicles.  
What good are they without the people to put in them; you have to take care of your people.     
 
Mayor Galea asked if he wanted a Staff report of how it would affect the budget to give a one-time 
amount to just PD and FD and then if that one time amount was given to all city staff.  Commissioner 
Hernandez said we have to thank our employees for the job they are doing. 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler and Commissioner Straface discussed one option.  Commissioner 
Hernandez suggested a redline bonus.  Mayor Galea asked if he would be ok with a one time merit 
amount.  Commissioner Hernandez thought we should build in something that would be there every 
year.  Mayor Galea felt we needed to recognize all employees and that we should look at our 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 38 OF 39 
 
reserves for this.  Commissioner Straface thought we should charge the city manager and staff to see 
what it would cost and the consequences.  Commissioner Turnbull said one way to do it if you 
wanted to use the Reserve is cut down that 25% from four years to seven years and you could use 
that excess. 
 
Mayor Galea asked about making employees whole. City Manager Stahle said we can come up with 
some ideas, but just the 10% rate increase for employee only insurance would cost the employee 
about $207.00 a year.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler reminded all that the lowest paid employees are 
protected from that. This was discussed back and forth.    
 
Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the Affordable Care Act will affect everyone.  Mayor Pro-
Tem Rentschler, City Attorney Thies and Human Resource Manager Josselyn discussed this. 
 
City Manager Stahle said we can provide you with some numbers concerning all this tomorrow for 
your review.  Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the 10% increase at current levels is about 
$120,000 – our side only. 
 
Commissioner Straface felt that whatever decision is made it will have to be found in the budget, and 
we will have to stand by it. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said another item is employee engagement.  He felt the employee parties 
were very important to let the employees know they are appreciated.   City Manager Stahle is in 
support of two events per year – one adult gathering during the holidays and a spring-time picnic for 
the families. Human Resource Manager Josselyn said the employee picnic cost about $4,200.00.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez would recommend contacting the police department so they don’t set up a 
road block on the same day.   
 
Mayor Galea attended the State of the City Address in El Paso and the commissioners each gave a 
State of the District Address at the same time and place.  It was a no-host lunch put on with the help 
of the Chamber of Commerce.  She thought it would be a good thing to do.  City Manager Stahle said 
the Chamber usually charges but there is not a cost to the City. 
 
Mayor Galea would like to see reclaimed water storage, but would keep this until tomorrow. 
 
City Manager Stahle said we will meet here tomorrow at 4:30 p.m.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to adjourn at 5:45 p.m. Commissioner Sikes 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 6-0-0.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
        Mayor Susie Galea 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
       
City Clerk Reneé L. Cantin 
 
(Prepared by Nancy Jacobs, Deputy Clerk)  
Approved at the Regular Meeting held on June 24, 2014. 



MAY 5, 6, 7, 12, & 13, 2014 BUDGET HEARING WORKSHOP MINUTES PAGE 39 OF 39 
 
 



JUNE 10, 2014 REGULAR MINUTES                                                         PAGE 15 OF 15     
    
 
 
          
              
        Mayor Susie Galea 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
       
City Clerk Reneé L. Cantin 
 
(Prepared by Nancy Jacobs, Deputy Clerk)  
Approved at the Regular Meeting held on June 24,2014. 
 
 



























































































































Transportation Plan Update

City of Alamogordo 
Engineering Department

June 24, 2014



2

Transportation Plan Update

• Previous Traffic Studies (1998 and 2011)
• NMDOT Functional Classifications
• Current and Proposed Functional Classifications
• Current Street Projects
• Proposed Street Projects
• Street Maintenance Program (SMP) – Action 

Needed
• Pedestrian Corridors
• Multi-Purpose Trail System
• Airport
• Public Transportation (Z-Trans)



3

Previous Traffic Studies

• Alamogordo Comprehensive Traffic Study 
by URS, March 1998

• Scope of Study
– Analysis of Existing Conditions (City and 

Holloman)

– Recommendations for future improvements

• Principal Findings: Construction of a Relief 
Route with connections to existing 
arterials.



4

Alamogordo Comprehensive Traffic Study by URS, March 1998

• See Interactive GIS Map: http://coa-nm.maps.arcgis.com/



5

CLICK HERE OPENS GALLERY

CLICK HERE OPENS MAP

The Map Gallery is either 
accessible through the City 
website.

Or directly by entering the url: 

http://coa-nm.maps.arcgis.com/



6

Previous Traffic Studies

• City of Alamogordo Traffic and Geometric 
Studies – Final Report by HDR, June 2011

• Scope of Study

– Traffic and Geometric Study at Eight 
Locations



7

City of Alamogordo Traffic and Geometric Studies – Final Report, June 2011



8

Previous Traffic Studies
• City of Alamogordo Traffic and Geometric Studies – Final Report by HDR, 

June 2011

• Principal Findings Implemented to Date:
• Task 1 – Indian Wells: modified version of Alternative 3 signal at re-aligned 

Washington/Pecan Drive.
• Task 2 – First and Florida Ave: Bond Issue Project to align Florida Ave.
• Task 3 – S. Florida Speed Study: Speed limit changed from 35 mph to 40 

mph.
• Task 4 – S. Florida and Panorama Intersection: All-way stop installed.
• Task 5 – Panorama and Hamilton Intersection: EB right turn lane, 1 

through lane, 1 right turn lane installed.  WB left turn lane and one shared 
through/right lane installed. (signal was recommended but not installed at 
this time).

• Task 6 – First St. at South Canyon Rd/Washington Ave:  align Washington 
with Canyon through park.  Current project to build South Washintgon
through to San Miguel St.

• Task 7 – Indian Wells at N. Scenic Drive Intersection Analysis: No signal 
recommended in short term, but 5-10 years out.  Also add dual left turn 
lanes for EB Indian Wells onto Scenic.

• Task 8 – East 10th Street at North Scenic Drive Intersection Analysis: No 
signal recommended in short term, but 5-10 years out.



9

Functional Classifications

• NMDOT Functional Classification Guidance 
Manual, February 2014

• Functional Classification defined: “the process 
by which streets and highways are grouped into 
classes, or systems, according to several factors 
that contribute to the overall importance of a 
given roadway to a region or area”



10

Functional Classifications

• There are 7 Roadway Functional Classifications 
(Urban and Rural for each)

1.Interstate (none in City)

2.Principal Arterial – Freeways (none in City)

3.Principal Arterial – Other

4.Minor Arterial

5.Major Collector

6.Minor Collector

7.Local  (Not eligible for Federal Funding through 
NMDOT)



11

Functional Classifications

• The Feds legislation (MAP-21) uses 
functional classification to determine 
eligibility for funding under the Federal-Aid 
Program.

• The State DOT uses functional 
classification in many decision-making 
processes for project prioritization, asset 
management, safety programs, design, 
traffic control, and maintenance.



12

Functional Classifications
• Principal Arterial – Freeways, Expressways, Other

– Rural: 4,000 – 8,500 AADT (Annual Avg Daily Trips) –
(Rural Not Used for City’s Re-classifications)

– Urban: 7,000 – 55,000 AADT
– 11-12 ft lanes
– Outside Shoulder Width 8 – 12 ft
– Divided or Undivided
– Access: Partially or Fully Controlled
– Qualitative (Urban): Serve major activity centers, 

highest traffic volume corridors, and longest trip 
demands.  Carry high proportion of total urban travel 
on minimum of mileage.  Interconnect major rural 
corridors for trips entering and leaving urban area and 
movements through area.  Serve demand for intra-
area travel between the central business district and 
outlying residential areas.

– Highway 70, Highway 54, Relief Route, White Sands 
Blvd, Scenic Drive



13

Typical Cross-Sections for Principal Arterials



14

Functional Classifications
• Minor Arterial 

– Rural: 1,500 – 6,000 AADT (Annual Avg Daily Trips) – Not 
Used

– Urban: 3,000 – 14,000 AADT
– 10-12 ft lanes
– Outside Shoulder Width 4 – 8 ft
– Undivided
– Access: Uncontrolled
– Qualitative (Urban): Interconnect with and augment the 

principal arterials.  Serve trips of moderate length at a 
lower level of travel mobility than principal arterials.  
Distribute traffic to smaller geographic areas than principal 
arterials.  Provide more land access than principal arterials 
without penetrating neighborhoods.  Provide urban 
connections for rural collectors.

– Florida Ave (Desert Lakes to 10th and Indian Wells to N. 
Scenic), Indian Wells Road, 10th Street, 1st Street, 
Fairgrounds Road.



15

Typical Cross-Sections for Minor Arterials



16

Functional Classifications
• Major Collector 

– Rural: 300 – 2,600 AADT (Annual Avg Daily Trips) – Not 
Used

– Urban: 1,100 – 6,300 AADT
– 10-12 ft lanes
– Outside Shoulder Width 1 – 6 ft
– Undivided
– Access: Uncontrolled
– Qualitative (Urban):Serve both land access and traffic 

circulation in higher density residential, and 
commercial/industrial areas.  Penetrate neighborhoods, 
often for significant distances.  Distribute and channel trips 
between local streets and arterials, usually over a distance 
of greater than ¾ of a mile.

– Washington Ave, Florida Ave (10th to Indian Wells), Cuba 
Ave, College Ave, Desert Lakes Rd, Hamilton Rd, 
Panorama/Ocotillo, MLK Drive, S. Walker Ave



17

Typical Cross-Sections for Major Collector



18

Functional Classifications
• Minor Collector 

– Rural: 150 – 1,110 AADT – Not Used

– Urban: 1,100 – 6,300 AADT

– 10-11 ft lanes

– Outside Shoulder Width 1 – 4 ft

– Undivided

– Access: Uncontrolled

– Qualitative (Urban):Serve both land access and traffic 
circulation in lower density residential, and 
commercial/industrial areas.  Penetrate 
neighborhoods, often only for a short distance.  
Distribute and channel trips between local streets and 
arterials, usually over a distance of less than ¾ of a 
mile.

- LaVelle Road, 25th Street, Mercury Ave, Wright Ave, 
Airport Rd, Cornell Ave



19

Typical Cross-Sections for Minor Collector



20



21

Proposed Functional Re-classifications

As of June 2014 – for Future Action by Commission 



22

Proposed Street Classification Map

• See Interactive GIS Map: http://coa-nm.maps.arcgis.com/



23

Current Street Projects

• See Interactive GIS Map
– Pecan/Indian Wells/Washington Intersection (completed)
– Pecan Extension to Fairgrounds Road (under construction)
– North Scenic repaving from White Sands to Florida (under 

construction)
– Fairgrounds Road repaving from White Sands to Florida (under 

construction)
– North Florida re-build from 10th to 16th (nearly completed)
– Panorama/Hamilton Intersection (under construction)
– Washington/1st Street Intersection and extension of Washington 

South (under construction)
– Washington Ave repaving from 1st to 10th (under construction)
– Right Turn Lane at 10th Street on to White Sands (under 

construction)
– Florida and 1st Street Re-alignment (RFQ for design services 

due July 2nd)



24

Proposed Street Projects

• See Interactive GIS Map

• North Scenic Extension to Relief Route (ICIP FY 16 #2)
• MLK Drive from Hamilton Rd to Highway 70 (ICIP FY16 #3)
• South Florida Extension: Desert Lakes to MLK Drive (ICIP FY16 #4)
• Washington Ave Reconstruction – 10th to Indian Wells (ICIP FY17 # 

1)
• LaVelle Road Improvements from Zuni to City Limits (ICIP FY18 #1)
• First Street – White Sands to Railroad (ICIP FY19 #1)

(Engineering Staff Recommendations for Future Action by 
Commission.)



25

Street Maintenance Program (FY15 FY19)

• See Interactive Map
• An annual average of $1.2 million from Street Capital Fund 

109 (2004 GRT) and an annual average of $800,000 from 
Water and Sewer Fund 81 is used to fund the yearly Street 
Maintenance Program (SMP) and street re-paving.  

• There are three categories of work that are undertaken by the 
SMP.  
– The first is preparatory work which includes replacement of 

non-compliant ADA ramps and alley aprons, incidental 
concrete in poor condition (curbs and gutters), and 
replacing water and sewer lines in poor condition.  Leaking 
water and sewer lines under pavement cause the 
subgrade to fail, which results in pavement failure.  

– The second type of work is pavement preservation such as 
crack sealing and chip sealing.  

– The third type of work is pavement replacement such as 
mill and overlay, the Cutler process, full-depth reclamation, 
and complete pavement re-builds. 



26

Proposed FY 20 Streets for SMP
• See Interactive GIS Map
• North Florida from 16th to Indian Wells
• Panorama from Hamilton to Ocotillo
• Dexter Lane (from Puerto Rico to Hawaii) – water lines renewed
• Dewey Lane (from Puerto Rico to Hawaii) – water lines renewed
• Alaska / Hawaii / 12th St (around post office)



27

Pedestrian Corridor System

• See Interactive GIS Map
• “Needs Work”



28

Trail System

• See Interactive GIS Map
• “Needs Work”



29

Airport

• See Interactive GIS Map

• Wildlife Hazard Assessment (ICIP FY 16 #7)
• Runway Strengthening and Design (ICIP FY16 #8)
• Runway 3-21 Lighting Rehabilitation (ICIP FY17 #1)
• Expand Large Aircraft Parking & Taxiway Apron Design (ICIP FY17 

# 2)
• Expand Large Aircraft Parking & Taxiway Apron Construction (ICIP

FY18 # 1)
• Municipal Airport Environmental Assessment (ICIP FY19 #1)
• Construct South Side Perimeter Drainage Improvements Phase IV 

(ICIP FY19 #2)
• Crosswind Runway Relocation Environmental Assessment (FY19 

#3)

(Community Services Staff Recommendations for Future Action by 
Commission.)



30

Public Transportation (Z-Trans)

• Working on obtaining route data for City GIS Map.
• Schedules and Route Maps available at:   ztrans.org



31

Recommendations and Conclusions

• Consider updating Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan (ballpark $400,000).

• Future Action to Consider Proposed Re-
classifications for application to 
NMDOT/SERTPO.

• Continue to develop pedestrian, trail, and bus 
plans. 

• Continue to develop Airport CIP projects.
• Approve Streets for the Street Maintenance 

Program (SMP) FY20 – Action Needed.












	Addendum
	Agenda (3)
	1) Minutes Approval
	June 10, 2014 (15)
	Budget Minutes (39)

	2) Executive Session Statement
	3) Lodger's Tax Expenditures
	Acct. Balance

	4) Res. 2014-28 Budget Adjustment
	Res. 2014-28
	All Funds Summary (3)
	Detail (4) 
	Schedule of Adjustements

	5) Ord. 1469 Rezoning N. Florida FINAL
	Ord. 1469 (2)
	Record of Decision

	6) Ord. 1470 Rezoning San Carlos St. FINAL
	Ord. 1470 (2)
	Record of Decision

	7) Ord. 1471 Airport Advisory Board FINAL
	Ord. 1471

	8) RFP 2014-001 Financial Svcs
	Proposal
	Score Sheet (2)

	9) RFP 2013-006 Automated Meter Reading System 
	Implementation Plan (5) 
	Agreement (21)

	10) Western Baking Corp. 
	11) Transportation Plan
	Presentation (31)

	12) Boards & Committees
	Housing Authority Advisory Board
	Resignation - Nina Saenz
	Application - Daugherty


	A-1. Executive Session Action

